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REAUTHORIZATION OF THE HIGHER
EDUCATION ACT, 1985

FRIDAY, MARCH 29, 1985

U.S. SENATE,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON EDUCATION, ARTS AND HUMANITIES,

COMMITTEE ON LABOR AND HUMAN RESOURCES,
Hartford, CT.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 9:05 a.m., Universi-
ty of Hartford, Senator Lowell Weicker, Jr. (acting chairman), pre-
siding.

Present: Senator Weicker.

OPENING STATEMENT OF SENATOR WEICKER

Senator WEICKER. I welcome everybody in the room here to the
hearings of the U.S. Senate Subcommittee on Education, Arts and
the Humanities. At the direction of the subcommittee's chairman,
Senator Stafford of Vermont, this hearing has been convened to
consider the impact of the administration's proposed cuts in higher
education student aid.

I particularly want to thank my good friend Steve Trachtenberg
of the University of Hartford for hosting us this morning. I have
had his counsel and advice over many education matters as they
have come before the U.S. Senate in years past.

I have invited eight students and five university presidents to
participate on three panels this morning to learn more about what
would happen if the administration's proposals are implemented,
and I know there are others here that also wish to provide testimo-
ny. We may not have time for everyone to speak, but there will be
a few minutes for unscheduled witnesses, and if any of you in the
audience would like to make a statement please be sure your name
is on the signup list.

This is not the first Reagan administration attempt to under-
mine an important element of our higher education system. It was
only 3 years ago that we came together on the campus of the Uni-
versity of Connecticut to consider the impact of similar devastating
cuts that are again proposed this year.

And I have heard it said that since these cuts, which are identi-
cal to those proposed several years ago, and when indeed the entire
hall was just filled with everybody in so far as persons interested
in the subject matter; I have heard it said that since these cuts
have been proposed, why, there does not seem to be that much in-
terest kindled in terms of mail or student interest or faculty inter-
est or whatever, and the reason probably being that since Reagan

(1)
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has done this every year since he has been in office and since these
cuts have not come to pass, why, everybody just has it as a fore-
gone conclusion that nothing is going to happen.

Well, let me tell you why nothing has happened: In the Senate, I
can make it pretty clear aside from the general votes in the Senate
floor by both Republicans and Democrats, the fact is that Senator
Stafford of Vermont and myself had to play political hardball to
make sure that these cuts would not go through.

And the same holds true on the House side. When I take a look
at the individuals involved with education just a handful stood up
to block it. Now, I do not know how many years this can go on. The
administration certainly has clout, as all of you must realize,
having seen the voting exercises of the past week.

And I would suggest that we as a nation are going to get no more
than we as a nation want. It is true, ycu know, that, as Ben Frank-
lin put it, in this country, in this Nation the people rule, and we
tend to compartmentalize things to those people down in Washing-
ton or those people in Hartford.

This situation of our Government, it is us; it is not those people.
And if indeed nobody cares, I can assure you these cuts are going
to go through. So I think it is time that people spoke up for what
the Nation's priorities are supposed to be because these cuts are
not just numbers and they are not just line items in the budget.
They are not just listings in the newspaper and they are not some-
one else's problem.

These cuts represent devastating change to people's lives and a
nation's hopes for the future. Everybody talks about the budget
and budget deficits. Now, that is important; as it should be. Every-
body worries about what will occur this year.

But, you see, my friends in the administrationand I might add
with the active and able assistance of many Democrats because the
Democrats control the House of Representativesare playing a
game that I think we had better start discussing as a people. Spe-
cifically, it is not so much what you see this year; this whole cast of
political characters will be off the stage by the time anybody feels
the impact of the cuts being proposed.

I sit as chairman of the Appropriations Subcommittee of Labor,
Health, and Human Services, which handles all the education, sci-
ence funding in this Nation, all the funding for the retarded and
disabled and the elderly. It is the third biggest budget in the world.

I have seen the cuts made in so far as programs kthat relate to
the retarded and the disabled. Now, if you do not want to feel 9
measure of sympathy in your heart for those people today, if you
want to strictly put it on a financial basis, then let me assure you
that any cuts that affect them in terms of them being main-
streamed into our society, any of those cuts you will pay for dearly
in the out years.

We have come to learn that the education and the rehabilitation
of our retarded and disabled is enormously cost effective if that is
the basis you want to put it on. and it is enormously expensive
when you institutionalize these people. Now, that is a hard point to
get across because you see that budget saving this year, and quite
frankly, the retarded and the disabled cannot speak for themselves.
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But you will pay for it, and when I say "you" I used the editorial
you which includes all of us in this country.

We know that the population of the United States is growing old.
I say that in this place of youth, but the fact is those 85 years of
age and over, that population will double by the year 2000. and the
population 65 years of age and over will double by the year 2020.

And yet the moneys that we appropriate to go to medical schools
that they might start to train people in the matter of geriatrics or
the money we appropriate to Alzheimer's disease, these are all
moneys that are going to be cut and really the impact will not be
felt so much this year, but what about the impact in the out years?
There is where the tremendous cost occurs.

The same holds true for those that are sick and diseased in this
Nation and the money that we put into research at the National
Institutes of Health. Yes, you can make a budget saving this year,
but, please understand that the tremendous medical breakthroughs
that are taking place this year, that you are reading about this
year and last, et cetera, this was all money that was invested 10, 15
years ago. and if you do not invest it now, it is not going to be out
there for future generations.

I fought so hard the taking away of moneys from the community
health centers. That was really a problem of the inner cities and
the blacks; it really was not our problem. and really who was going
to pay for it? A few bureaucrats might lose their jobs. and then I
pick up a report in the New York Times of just several weeks ago
and we see where the infant mortality rate in this Nation, which
has always been the highest among the economically advantaged
nations of the world, the decline in infant mortality has stopped
and infant mortality rates are enormously high in the cities of this
Nation, one of them being Hartford, CT. And why? Because most of
the time when a woman in labor is wheeled into that hospital, that
is the first time that the doctor ever saw her. And all the prenatal
care that used to take place mainly through the community health
centers is no longer there.

And, so, yes, there is a price that is even being paid now. For all
the concernand I do not want to get into that debate todayof
the unborn, how about the born. and then for those that thought
there was no price to be paid in so far as the poor of the Nation are
concerned and you read the report on hunger delivered not by
some kook, left wing organization but by Harvard University.
There are more going hungry in this Nation now than ever before
at a time when supposedly we are the economic giant of the world.

And now we are brought together here on the matter of youth
and the matter you student aid. But now you see it all comes to-
gether because indeed maybe you were not retarded, maybe you
were not poor, maybe you were not elderly, maybe you were not an
infant, buf now you are young and you have a whole future ahead
of you. and this is when you are asking your country for some form
of assistance in order to lead that quality of life that you aspire to.

And there has been the success of the entire economic program
as proposed by Democrat and Republican in the last few years. We
have succeeded in vulcanizing this Nation. You are a special inter-
est. I never knew that when I first went to Washington, that stu-
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dents were a special interest. I never knew the poor were a special
interest. I never knew the elderly were a special interest.

Yes, I assumed that special interest groups, that you had your
corporations down there and various unions; in an economic sense,
in other words, these were special interests, but not those interests
that belong to all of us in a different way depending on who we
are, where we come from.

and I might add to the group that politically nowadays is called
the Yuppies, the ones that are apparently doing very well economi-
cally; I would expect that they have attained their particular
status in life because somebody cared about them in some form.

Our institutions of higher education constitute an invaluable na-
tional resource that would be devastated if these proposals are en-
acted that are up for review today. Today's testimony is important
because it translates the cold and sterile numbers of a budget pro-
posal into the unrealized dreams and the foregone opportunities of
real people.

But I would hope that before this is all over it is not just an exer-
cise on speaking out for college, for student aid. I hope it does not
become that. I hope this might be the starting point where we
speak out for each other because, believe when I say this, that
America moves best when it moves together. And I think we are
very fortunate in this small State to understand what a neighbor
is, and sometimes that becomes hard to visualize nationally.

But your neighbor is retarded and your neighbor is poor and
your neighbor is old. And your neighbor is young.

So, with those opening comments, the hearing will now proceed,
and our first witness is Representative John Rowland, John the
newest member of our congressional delegation from Connecticut's
Fifth District. And I glad to have him here as a friend. I am also
delighted that he is a Republican. He is also one of the few Repub-
licans who talks to me.

But there is something else about John that makes it very impor-
tant that he be with us today. As I received my legal education at
the University of Virginia vis-a-vis the GI bill of rightsthat is
what my Government did for meso John received his education
at Villanova, and, yes, that education was financed in part by a
student loan.

John, it is good to have you with us.

STATEMENT OF JOHN G. ROWLAND, A REPRESENTATIVE IN
CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF CONNECTICUT

Mr. ROWLAND. Senator, thank you very, very much. First let me
thank you and thank the committee and thank the chairman for
allowing me to participate in this hearing. First I want to whole-
heartedly endorse your opening comments. And I think all of us,
whether we are in the education community or involved in any
sector or any special interest or just plain old people in the Stag of
Connecticut, have seen you as a champion not only of these issues
but many, many issues and not only in the past year or during this
past administration but over the past two decades, and I want to
thank you for being that champion and being part of our delega-
tion.

9



5

Connecticut is a State that takes great pride in its education
community. Some 62 percent of our high school graduates have
gone to college. Our institutions of higher education are some of
the finest in the world, and simply put, we are a State that realizes
that the future of our youth demands that we do not start auction-
ing away seats at our prestigious colleges and universities to the
highest bidders. Poor and middle class students in Connecticut
have a lot to lose from cuts in the education budget. All together
we stand to lose about $67 million in Federal financial aid; $67 mil-
lion is approximately 37 percent of the total funds received by Con-
necticut college students. One-third or 24,000 of the students in
Connecticut who currently receive guaranteed student loans will
become ineligible. And approximately 6,000 students would lose
their Pell grants. Perhaps the most disturbing problem is that the
administration's proposal denies assistance to families with in-
comes of over $32,500 without taking into consideration the
number of students a family may have in college.

How can we deny a family making $32,500 with two or three
children in college access to the Student Loan Program while a
family earning $32,000, just $500 less, with only one child would be
eligible to receive assistance? These proposals are clearly unfair to
those who are truly needy. The proposed ceiling of $4,000 of aid to
individual students would strike hardest at those who are neediest
and those who would certainly attend private institutions.

This brings up an unfortunate dilemma. According to the former
U.S. Commissioner of Education, Harold Howe, taxpayers will be
paying an increasing amount toward the education of those attend-
ing public institutions. The administration's proposal will cause a
shift of many of these new applicants from private to public col-
leges. This in turn will increase costs to taxpayers. Or just as bad,
it may result in the crowding out of students for whom the choice
is attending a public college or no college at all.

The Republican members of the House Subcommittee on Postsec-
ondary Education have proposed a spending freeze at fiscal year
1985. This appropriation level will be for all programs under the
subcommittee's jurisdiction with the exception of guaranteed stu-
dent loans.

Under the GSL Program they recommend programmatic changes
that would not gut the Student Loan Program but simply require
that all students undergo a needs test. I hope the Education and
Labor Committee gives this proposal serious consideration.

Now, the time to correct the problems inherent in the student
assistance programs is later this year when Congress takes up the
reauthorization of the Higher Education Act. First and foremost,
we must crack down on those who have defaulted on their loans
and those who are making no reasonable effort to meet their obli-
gation. That just punishes future young people who want to attend.
college. But derailing the Student Loan Program because of these
past defaults also punishes future young people.

In conclusion, the changes proposed by the administration are
simply unacceptable. As perhaps the only Member of Congress still
repaying his own student loans I understand the importance of this
type of assistance not only to current students but to future stu-
dents and future generations.
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It is frightening that in the year 2000 when my daughter Kirsten
will be entering college annual tuition is expected to be $20,000.
That is just tuition, $20,000.

The future of this great Nation depends on the future of our
youth, and the future will be meaningful only if college is not an
extracurricular activity or a passing fancy, but for all intents and
purposes a prerequisite. We are rapidly approaching an end to the
days when you can go into business for yourself or any kind of
business without some sort of college diploma, and that applies to
the rich and to the poor alike.

The opportunity to attend college cannot be limited to only those
with families with high incomes. In 1960 high-ability, low-income
high school students had only a 42-percent chance of attending. col-
lege. By 1980, 20 years later with the development of Federal
grants, loans, and work-study programs 73 percent of these stu-
dents plan to attend college.

Student loan programs are not a giveaway. They are not a free-
bee. They are an investment in our future. I want to thank you,
Senator, and thank the committee for allowing me to share some of
my concerns about the proposed cuts. In my opinion and I am sure
in your opinion, it is one of the most important issues we are
facing in Congress this year, and I want to thank you for your con-
tinued interest and your continued support and know that I am on
your side in this issue. Thank you very much.

Senator WEICKER. John, thank you very much. Let me just ask
you one question because you can sort of bring us all up to speed
on what the House is going to do. Do you feel that the principal
thrust of the administration cuts is going to get through the
House?

Mr. ROWLAND. I would say that most Members in the House,
both sides of the aisle, understand the importance of the Student
Loan Program. I would say that there is not much interest on cut-
ting back on the program. And I think there are two fallacies that
we have to dismiss immediately.

That is the argument that people are not paying back the stu-
dent loans; therefore, it is a bad program; therefore, we should be
cutting back on the program; therefore, we should be tightening up
the restrictions; therefore, we should be limiting the income to
$32,500. If we have problems in collecting the student loans, let us
argue that problem and address that problem. But you cannot
throw the baby out with the bath water and try to restructure the
whole program because we are bad collectors.

The other instance is the comments made by the Education Sec-
retary when he referred to young people buying sports cars and
taking trips and buying stereos and a variety of other issues that
sound good in the press. I think he oversimplified the situation.
Yes, like any Federal program, starting out there were some prob
lems years ago. Those problems have been corrected. I think its an
oversimplification by the Secretary. I took great resentment being
part of that generation to those comments, and I believe he is going
to have to change his thinking about the Student Loan Program.

But in straight answer to your question I have found in talking
to my colleagues and I have garnered support to oppose these cuts.
I have found that many Members on both sides of the aisle have
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talked to their constituents realizing the benefit of the program, re-
alizing the benefit to excellence in education, and the benefit to
our future young people.

Senator WEICKER. Thank you very much, Congressman. I would
hope at this juncture you would come up and join me here for a
few minutes. I know you have to fly back to Washington to be at
the reception of the body of Major Nicholson at Andrews Air Force
Base, so you will be leaving us in a few minutes. But if you would
join us, I would appreciate it.

There are an awful lot of people standing up. Please feel free to
take seats back here if you care to. And do not worry about getting
trapped up here. You can come in and out just however you want
to, so that if anybody cares to sit down, feel free to sit on either
side here where there are plenty of chairs.

,
I alco have a statement from Congresswoman Barbara Kennelly

regarding the proposed cuts. That statement will be entered into
the written record of this hearing, needless to say very much op-
posed to the cuts in student loans.

[The statement referred to follows:)

12



8

TESTIMONY or U.S. REnESENTATIVE BARBARA B. KENNELLY

Thank you for this opportunity to express my views on the President's FY
1986 budget propo4a1 to cut $2.2 billion from student financial aid programa.
I am very pleased that the Subcommittee chose my congressional district for a
field hearing on this vital lime. In the first district and elsewhere, tha
cuts proposed by the Administration would have far-reaching and, I fear,
ominous implications both for colleges and universities and for the stndents

who etttnd them.

When we weigh the merits and drawbacks of the various budget proposals,
we are making choices about the kind of society we hope to build for the

future. Nowhere 14 this more clear than in the area of education. Quite
simply, education is investment, in individuals and in our nation. No
society can hope to excel -- politically, economically, or culturally --
unless it is committed to the education of young people.

In our colleges and universities today, we are training the minds and
hands that will design the sophisticated weapons that protect our national

security. We are educating the scientists who will tackle the problem of

hunger with advanced genetic engineering. We are preparing the doctors and
researchers whose efforts night mean good health and long life for millions.
We are molding the painters, musicians, and writers whose creativity will
enrich life for all of us. Above all, we are shaping the next generation of
peace-makers, those who must take up the burden of survival in a nuclear age.

For all these reasons, the Administration's budget proposals for student
financial aid are short-sighted and misguided. All our students, not just a
privileged few, should have a chance to go as far at their intellects will

take then. Yet measures such as ending eligibility for students from fami-
lies with adjusted gross incomes over $?^,500 or limiting the total amount of
aid to $4,000 a year per student will force students to transfer to less
expensive colleges, to drop out of college,, or never even to have a chance to

enter college at all.

Steps such as those proposed by the Administration do not take into
account the every-day realities that f families. It is obvious that these

steps will further limit access and chol*.e for the poor and disadvantaged.
Ye2 the impact on middle-income young pelae may be just as severs. With two

or more children in college at the same time; with unexpected medical bills;
with unforeseen periods of unemployment; with any number of perfectly
ordinary yet unpredictable events, even relatively well-off families may find

higher education unaffordable.

I firmly believe that financial aid should not be given to those who do

not need it. Yet I question whether an arbitrary cut-off level from
eligibility for aid really accomplishes that goal. If well-off students are
receiving aid, shouldn't we be developing better methods of determining who

really needs financial aid? By the same token, if student loans are not
being repaid, shouldn't we go after those who are delinquent, rather than
punishing prospective students by denying them aid?

The Administration's proposals would mean that about 2 million students

would no longer be eligible for aid. In Connecticut alone, 24,000 students
-- nearly a third of those now receiving loans -- would lose them. Private
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institutions, such as the one at which this hearing today is being held, will
be particularly hard hit.

It is short-sighted to think that students who lose financial aid could
simply start attending less expensive public schools. If only 10 percent of
the 2.5 million students now attending private schools transfer to public
schools -- which are, in any case, unprepared for a sudden influx of students
-- the additional cost to states could go as high as $1 billion. We could
cripple our private institutions by making them unaffordable for most
students, and cripple our public ones by flooding them with students they are
not prepared to handle.

I have touched on just a few of the more pressing issues raised by the
proposed cuts in student financial aid. I am sure that others will be raised
in the course of these hearings. But I'd like to add just one last point:
Over the years, we have developed a vibrant higher education system, one that
can meet the needs of many types of students. That diversity is precious,
and should be protected for the sake of our future. Thank you very much.

Senator WEICKER. Our first panel today will be four students who
are currently enrolled in higher education programs in Connecti-
cut. Each is currently participating in one or more federally sup-
ported student aid programs. They represent a diversity of schools
ranging from a technical college to a medical school. I am looking
forward to hearing from each of you and I will hold my questions
until after all have presented their prepared statements.

The witnesses are Mr. William Rowe from the University of Con-
necticut Health Center; Ms. Anne Masco li from the Central Con-
necticut State University; Marilyn Velez from Waterbury State
Technical College; and, Kim Mullen from Manchester Community
College.

I believe that William Rowe is our first witness.

STATEMENTS OF WILLIAM ROWE, UNIVERSITY OF CONNECTICUT
HEALTH CENTER; ANNE MASCOLI, CENTRAL CONNECTICUT
STATE UNIVERSITY; MARILYN VELEZ, WATERBURY STATE
TECHNICAL COLLEGE; AND KIM MULLEN, MANCHESTER COM-
MUNITY COLLEGE

Mr. ROWE. Good morning, Senator. I am currently a third year
medical student at the University of Connecticut Health Center
and I have been asked to speak to you concerning the financing of
my education.

I am a Connecticut resident. My family lives in Stamford. I at-
tended Cornell University, a highly regarded and quite expensive
institution of higher education. My parents provided about $40,000
toward that education, much of Which they are still paying off.

I also needed the $7,500 then available to me under the title IV
Guaranteed Student Loan Program. In addition, and partially
under the College Work-Study Program, I worked for 25 to 35
hours a week during my junior and senior years in order to com-
plete my undergraduate education. Now, this was in addition to
working during the summer and during vacation periods.

I was accepted to medical school straight out of college. However,
by that time my other sister was also in college. Even so, plus loans
on my college education, my parents were still able to help me
through my first 2 years of medical school by lending me several
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thousand dollars. This is in addition to the $5,000 in guaranteed
student loans per year, and a part time job.

I was fortunate in that I only had to borrow about $3,000 in the
high interest, title VII HEAL Program during those first 2 years.

This year alone, however, my third year, I have borrow $13,800.
Of this amount, $5,000 was from the Guaranteed Student Loan Pro-
gram, $1,800 was a university loan, and the other $7,000 was from
the high interest HEAL Program. I realize that $13,800 may sound
pretty extravagant for a student. My expenses include more than
$5,000 in tuition and fees leaving less than $7,000 for other living
expenses, which include rent, utilities, food, books and journals,
and transportation, which in my case is a 1974 Volkswagen Beetle
sorely in need of a new muffler, which incidentally I will be chang-
ing myself rather than paying to have it installed. Although I am
certain that Secretary of Education William Bennett would consid-
er any car, even mine, a luxury, I can assure you that very few
buses run between 5 and 6 in the morning which is when many
medical students must get to the hospital.

The hours that graduate and professional students keep are not
only unusual, but they are also very long. I was able to work
during my first 2 years of medical school on a part-time basis.

However, during a recent general surgery rotation, I was at the
hospital an average of 90 hours a week. The point 1 am making is
that it is impossible to hold down part-time work during the third
and fourth years of medical school.

To get back to the specifics of my personal experience with loans
my total indebtedness is as follows: To the Title IV, Guaranteed
Student Loan Program I owe currently $22,500; this does include
$7,500 undergraduate; on the university loan I owe $1,800, and
under the Title VII, HEAL Program I owe $10,000 at a current rate
of about 16 percent; for a total of $34,300 in Government and uni-
versity loans. This does not include $13,000 I owe my parents and
relatives for medical school alone for a total of $47,300 total indebt-
edness to date

Now, these figures do.not include what my parent owe both on
myself and my sister from undergraduate. Next year the HEAL
loan will cost me about $1,600 in interest alone, which will be com-
pounded as I defer it because otherwise I would have to take out
another loan to pay for it. With a little luck I will be able to gradu-
ate with a total indebtedness of about $60,000.

I would like to remind you that I attend a State medical school
which costs much less than the private medical schools.

Looking toward the future I will spend from 3 to 8 years in a
Residency and Fellowship Program. During that time when my
loan comes due I expect to be repaying my loans to the tune of
$600 to $700 a month. Although things will be tight for a number
of years, all those loans will be repaid.

In summary, Senator, I have made use of several of the loan pro-
grams currently available to students, the Title IV, College Work-
Study and Guaranteed Student Loan Programs and the Title VII,
Health Education Assistance Loan Program.

Of these programs the Guaranteed Student Loan has been by far
the most important. It accounts for two-thirds of my Government
and university loans, and if I were affected by the new administra-
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tion proposals I would be ineligible for it. About 73 percent of my
classmates also depend on the Guaranteed Student Loan Program,
and I daresay that many of us could not have made it financially
without the program. And to cut back the HEAL Program is in-
comprehensible, as that should be a break-even proposition
anyw

the
a.

If
y

purpose of these cutbacks is to limit the number of college
and professional graduates, then the administration proposals are
sure to succeed. But you might like to remind the President that
he needs college and professional graduates to build his Star Wars
Program. Let us face it, education is the future of this country, and
that is why I am urging you, Senator, to vote for retaining the loan
programs as they currently stand. Thank you. [Applause.]

Senator WEICKER. We thank you very much. The next witness is
Anne Masco li from Central Connecticut.

Ms. MASCOLI. Good morning, Senator. I would like to thank you
for the opportunity to present testimony at this morning's hearing.
My name is Anne Masco li. I am a sophomore at Central Connecti-
cut State University majoring in graphic design management.

I am the youngest of five children and one of three who are pres-
ently in college. I have a brother and sister who are also at Cen-
tral. In the past 2 years that I have been in school I have been for-
tunate to have been a recipient of many forms of Federal and State
financial aid. Because of the number of children in college my
family has relied heavily on this aid to help support the costs of
attending school.

In 1983-84 I received a total of $3,191 in financial aid including a
Pell grant for $375 and a national direct student loan for $316. I
earned $744 of that assistance working under the College Work-
Study Program at the university library.

This year I've received a total of $2,794 including a Pell grant of
$550 and a guaranteed student loan for $750. During both years I
have been a recipient of a Connecticut scholastic achievement
grant in the amount of $500 a year.

Since Central's estimated student expense budget for on-campus
residents is $4,700, a little over half my class are supported by stu-
dent aid. The rest comes from my summer savings, part-time em-
ployment during the school year, and what my parents can help
contribute. Both my brother and my sister are also recipients of fi-
nancial aid at Central, but they have relied more heavily on stu-
dent loans.

My oldest brother and oldest sister who have both completed col-
lege also had financial aid when they were in school, including
Federal loans which both of them have already completely repaid.
My sister attended Columbia University in New York and my
brother a State community college and then a proprietary college
for training in electronics.

And now this year my older sister has been accepted to medical
school to begin in August. So next year we will have four members
of my family in college.

My parents' combined income now exceeds the proposed $32,500
cap which would make us ineligible for loans or grants. The elimi-
nation of Federal financial aid would simply make it impossible for
all of us to continue. My oldest sister has worked especially hard
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both in college and since her graduation to repay her student loans
and finally to have been admitted to medical school, and to deny
her now this opportunity would be terribly unjust. My other broth-
er and sister who. are in school now will be seniors next year and it
would be a terrible waste if one of them had to stop.

I myself would certainly not want to discontinue my education. I
have worked very hard to maintain a 3.4 cumulative grade point
average. An education is very important to rile and 6 my parents
who both also went to college. My parents have always been will-
ing to sacrifice for all of us to give us good educations. They do not
have any luxuries. They have never had a new car, never taken an
expensive vacation, and even now they are planning to take a
second mortgage on their home to help finance my sister in medi-
cal school. And those of us in school have always been willing to
work hard also.

The three of us have all had two summer jobs, and we work part
time during the school year to help with costs, and we will contin-
ue to do so.

Despite the student divestiture statements that Secretary Ben-
nett recently made, I assure you I do not own a car or a stereo and,
as you can see, I did not go to Florida last week when I was on my
spring break. These things are really unimportant to me right now
compared to the completion of my education.

I particularly feel that the proposed income caps are unjust as
they make no exceptions for families with more than one child in
school or for other extraordinary circumstances which might occur.

This would be penalizing families in my situation, and my family
is certainly not exceptional. There are so many others facing simi-
lar circumstances. I can only make brief comments in regard to
some of the administration's other recommendations. Because of
the relatively low cost at Central it is unlikely that the $4,000
mega cap on total financial aid would have an effect on me. I am
not opposed to an $800 self-help expectation including the opportu-
nity to work under college work-study.

I aril concerned with one of the lesser publicized recommenda-
. tions regarding the elimination of funding State student incentive

grants. These funds support Connecticut's scholastic achievement
grants which is in part h merit award which I worked very hard to
achieve in high school. It would hurt if I lost this scholarship as
well as the other aid.

As I stated earlier the availability of financial aid is very impor-
tant to our family because of the number of children in school.
Even now with the money from the second mortgage my family
cannot afford to keep all four students in school without some fi-
nancial aid. We simply have no other place to turn for assistance.

The argument implied by Secretary Bennett that students may
have to choose less expensive schools does not hold for us since we
are all attending public schools now.

The administration's proposals to reduce Federal student aid as-
sistance will surely have a devastating effect on our Nation as a
whole. We are supposedly entering an age of higher technology in
order to compete in the world market and our older industries
need to be modernized. Without the opportunities of education

17



13

being open to all who desire and merit it we will be limiting the
human resources of our Nation.

I certainly hope my education will help me to contribute to the
future of our country. I realize that the proposed cuts are to help
aim aid at the neediest students, but I do think that the proposed
cap should be qualified taking into account families with more
than one in school at the same time and also the costs of the insti-
tutions they are attending, whether they be public or private.

I am not here today to ask that the Federal Government or the
American taxpayers pay totally for my education, only for the op-
portunity to obtain necessary loans or grants, as the case may be,
to allow me to become a productive citizen willing to contribute to
our society today and thus help the next generation that will
follow us. Thank you, Senator.

Senator WEICKER. Thank you very much. The next witness is
Marilyn Velez from Waterbury State Technical College.

Ms. VELEZ. Senator Weicker, ladies and gentlemen, my name is
Marilyn Velez. I am a freshman at Waterbury State Technical Col-
lege and my major is chemical engineering. One of the reasons I
applied to Waterbury State Technical College was because it is rel-
atively inexpensive and affordable with the help of financial aid. I
come from a low-income family situation and there are six family
members in my household.

I am the only one attending college. We had a total family
income of $18,000 last year. So you can see why my education at
present is being financed completely by grants, scholarships, col-
lege work-study and the guaranteed student loan.

President Reagan's proposed Federal cuts will hurt students like
myself in many areas making it impossible for us to get an educa-
tion. As you are aware, college students are expected to supple-
ment a portion of their education through summer employment.
With the present proposal to cut student youth employment funds
it is becoming more and more difficult to obtain summer jobs.

Yet under the present structure students still would be expected
to pay for a portion of their education, job or not. Most colleges fix
in $700 to $1,000 as the portion of family contribution a student
has to make toward his or her education. Where will the money
come from if Federal cuts make it impossible for me to obtain
summer employment?

At present I do not receive any money from my pare i to subsi-
diz3 my education. I am entirely dependent upon the i.. icial as-
sistance programs offered to me by the college. Presently I am con-
sidered a dependent student living at home. As of this year I will
be considered an independent student due to the fact that my par-
ents and family are moving back to Puerto Rico.

This upcoming situation will increase my need for a greater
amount of financial aid. What worries me now is that I have 3
years to go, one at Waterbury State Technical College for my asso-
ciate's degree and 2 at a 4-year college for my bachelor's degree.

As I previously stated, I would have to go to a 4-year college for
my bachelor's degree. Most of the 4-year colleges which I have
looked into and would consider attending have a budget close to
$9,000. We know that President Reagan is proposing a $4,000 cap
in annual grant and loan amounts combined. I, myself, will be left
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out in the cold because out of the college's $9,000 budget I would
have to come up with the remaining difference of $5,000, which
would be literally impossible for me to obtain.

I am sure there will be thousands of students like myself who
will be in the same fix. If Congress seeks to pass this bil.. you are
in effect telling millions of students across the country trom low-
income families that President Reagan's plans for eliminating
assets to higher education for those who aren't wealthy is surely
what Government should be doing. The message will be that the
way to economic stability and job improvement across the country
is not by helping to educate the masses, but by providing opportu-
nities for the chosen few, thereby telling those students who are
trying to rise up out of their low-income situations and build a
place for themselves in society that their efforts are a futile task.

I say that the Appropriations Committee will not let this gross
injustice happen to the youth of our Nation who are seeking to im-
prove their way of life, that the committee will see that the way
this country has always created more stable economic future has
been to provide positive and equal chance and educational growth
for all. Educating our people is America's way for continued pros-
perity in the future. Thank you.

[Applause.]
Senator WEICKER. Thank you very much. The last witness on this

particular panel is Kim Mullen from Manchester Community Col-
lege.

Ms. MULLEN. Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, my
name is Kimberly Mullen. I am 24 years of age and a student at
Manchester Community College. I am speaking in opposition to the
reductions in Federal student aid proposed by the Reagan adminis-
tration.

My ability to attend college has been due in part to financial
support from Federal assistance programs. In 1978 I attended
Bauder College in Florida and obtained a 1-year diploma in fashion
merchandising. I received financial assistance through a national
direct student loan, which has since been paid in full.

I entered the work force in a management capacity and became
self-supporting as a result of my education. After 4 years I elected
to make a career change. Additional higher education was neces-
sary to complete the change and achieve my career goal as an
acting coach. Due to limited financial resources I decided to attend
a low cost community college.

Leaving the full-time work force results in a decrease in salary
and standard of living. For example, No. 1, relocating to a less de-
sirable area; No. 2, moving from a full size apartment to a single
room; No. 3, trading a new vehicle for an older, more economical
one, thus eliminating car loan payments, decreasing car insurance
premiums; No. 4, experiencing social and personal adjustments,
causing changes in my eating habits, limited allowances for cloth-
ing and personal expenses, and restricting funds for social activi-
ties.

I was willing to make these sacrifices to fulfill my goals. In order
to attend Manchester Community College I am employed through
the College Work-Study Program, the student program board, and
a local rental office. My contributions are not limited to school or
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the workplace. My extracurricular activities include being dramat-
ic arts club president, performer in a number of theater produc-
tions at the school, delegate to the National Association of Campus
Activities Conference, electoral assembly alternate, and a member
of various other collegewide committees.

Most importantly, while fulfilling these obligations I maintained
a 3.8 cumulative grade point average. In short, both the college and
I have contributed and both have reaped benefits.

This fall I look forward to attending New York University. The
estimated cost of attending this college including tuition, fees,
books, supplies, food, housing, personal expenses, and transporta-
tion exceeds $13,000 per year. Although I plan to continue working
I will be unable to meet the financial requirements of NYU with-
out maximum Federal assistance, Pell, SEOG, NDSL, and the Col-
lege Work-Study Program.

It is to my understanding the Reagan administration has pro-
posed to place a ceiling of $4,000 on the total amount of student aid
including loans, grants, work-study money that anyone can receive
under Federal student aid programs. These proposed budget cuts
will deprive me of a continued higher education and will deny soci-
ety of my contribution. I feel I deserve the opportunity to attend
the college that will best serve my educational goals, not just a col-
lege I can afford.

A quality higher education should be accessible to every Ameri-
can regardless of his economic or social background. Higher educa-
tion should not be viewed as a national burden, rather an invest-
ment in the United States and its future. Our country depends on
an educated, skilled and literate society. As an American student
and voter I urge you to reject these devastating reductions in Fed-
eral aid programs. Thank you. [Applause.]

Senator WEICKER. Thank you. I know Congressman Rowland has
to leave, so if he has any questions we would like to hear them at
this time.

Mr. ROWLAND. Thank you, Senator. Actually, it would be very
difficult to ask any questions that would bring out any more infor-
mation than you have presented.

I just want to say that that is some of the finest testimony that I
have heard in a long time. Unfortunately, I do have to go back this
morning to the House, but I will make sure that at least the Mem-
bers in the House will get an opportunity to see your testimony be-
cause I think if they do listen to the comments made by you this
morning and if they read into the comments you have made and if
they look at the situations you are all facing as individuals, then I
think it is fair to say that not only other students in this room but
certainly other students across their districts are in the same situa-
tions.

I think if they get the opportunity to see that testimony there is
no way in the world that they are going to touch the student loan
programs and the student assistance programs.

And I just want to thank you for having the courage to step for-
ward. It is very difficult with all those microphones, and I just
want to thank you for having the courage to step forward and
speak out on behalf of your peers and know that it is going to be
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heard in the House. And I think it is safe to say it is going to be
heard in the Senate.

Thank you. [Applause.]
Senator WEICKER. Thank you very much, John.
I have one question for all of you that I would hope each one

would respond to. And I might add as to wondering what happens
to this testimony, as fate would have it, the next witness that I
have before my Subcommittee on Appropriationand this will
occur the week after nextis one William Bennett. And I would
suggest that Mr. Bennett had best be rather precise in anyI
know this sounds rather contradictoryin any of his generaliza-
tions, but with this testimony in hand we will place your testimony
against these generalizations which seem very spectacular and very
readable, but at the same time being very untrue.

The one question that I have to each of you is if these cuts went
through, how much do you think would really be belt tightening
and how much would really just be ending the education process
for a particular individual. And you can use your own experience
in that record. How much would be belt tightening? How many of
you would just have to knock off the education and get to work and
do something, in other words, outside the educational process?

Mr. ROWE. Senator, I would losemy parents' combined income
is greater than $32,500, and I would wind up losing $22,500, and
that would be an awful lot of belt tightening, and quite frankly
that would probably have precluded my going to medical school.

Senator WEICKER. That is a good question because you are now
well into your medical education.

Mr. ROWE. That is correct, sir.
Senator WEICKER. So you can see the end. If you had this choice

to make at the outset, my question is, Would you have gone into
the medical field?

Mr. ROWE. That is a very difficult question because my total in-
debtedness would have increased tremendously. I would have been
forced to borrow virtually everything under the high interest
HEAL Program and if I borrowed, say, $40,000 under that program
at current interest rates I would wind up repaying over the life of
the repayment period about $400,000 at 15 percent. And right
now- -

Senator WEICKER. That would have been a tough decision.
Mr. ROWE. It would have, yes.
Senator WEICKER. The Connecticut lottery might be good, but it

is not that good. Anne?
Ms. MAscou. Senator, I feel myself personally I would be able to

complete my education but not within 4 years. I think I would have
to work full time and probably go to school part time and I would
be able to complete my education over a longer period of time. But
as for my sister attending medical school it would be completely
impossible, a complete impossibility for her to attend medical
school.

I think that would be the biggest effect on my family.
Senator WEICKER. Marilyn.
Ms. VELEZ. Senator Weicker, I also think that without my aid I

would have to leave school and get a full-time job and attend school
part time because right now, like I said, I am being financed corn-
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pletely by my aid to attend college, and without it would not be
able to finish out my 4 years because the next 2 years that I would
have to finish out would cost me a pretty big sum and I would not
be able to do it.

Senator WEICKER. Kim.
Ms. MULLEN. I am pretty much in the same circumstances. The

money that I make working three jobs supportsI barely make
ends meet and I am working as much as I possibly can. And I
really do not have the money I need. I am willing to work as much
as I can this summer to put forth the $800 or whatever I need. I
will contribute as much as I humanly possibly can, but without
maximum aid I will not continue.

Senator WEICKER. In your case you are paying in addition to the
loans the rest of the cost of your education. Your parents are not;
is that correct?

Ms. MULLEN. I am receiving a tuition waiver.
Senator WEICKER. Your parents are participating to some extent,

Marilyn, in your education?
Ms. VELEZ. No, they are not. I am being financed by financial aid

from the school and the Federal Government.
Senator WEICKER. Anne?
Ms. MASCOLI. Our parents contribute a little bit to our education,

but between the three of us now they cannot contribute a large
amount.

Senator WEICKER. As I understand it, you have three other- -
Ms. MASCOLI. Three in college right now and next year it will be

four.
Senator WEICKER. And what other universities are your family

going to?
Ms. MASCOLI. All three of us now are at Central and three of us

will still be at Central next year and also my sister who plans to
attend medical school.

Senator WEICKER. And as I understood your testimony, you indi-
cated both family and friends had contributed to your education.

Mr. RowE. Family and relatives, yes, sir.
Senator WEICKER. Well, I thank you all for your testimony and it

will be useful in the deliberatIons of the committee. I just wish the
whole country could have heard the testimony. We will try to see
at least that it has an effect on the whole country. Thank you very
much. [Applause.]

Our next panel consists of five distinguished university presi-
dents from schools here in Connecticut, and I very ritich appreciate
the time that each one of you gentlemen are taking this morning
from your busy schedules to be with us.

We have President Bart Giamatti of Yale University; we have
our host, President Trachtenberg, University of Hartford; John Di-
Biaggio, president of the University of Connecticut and unfortu-
nately soon to be going West. Is Father Kelley here? Father Kelley
has not arrived. President Feldman of Western Connecticut State
University. I am again going to withhold my questions until you all
have given testimony, but I again want to express my appreciation
to all of those on this panel. I have worked with all of you vis-a-vis
higher education matters. 1 think we are very fortunate indeed to
have men of your caliber as a part of the education leadership of
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this State. So why do we not proceed with the testimony and then I
will have questions to follow up. Steve.

STATEMENTS OF STEPHEN J. TRACHTENBERG, PRESIDENT, UNI-
VERSITY OF HARTFORD; A. BARTLETT GIAMATTI, PRESIDENT,
YALE UNIVERSITY; JOHN A. DI BIAGGIO, PRESIDENT, UNIVER-
SITY OF CONNECTICUT; FATHER ALOYSIUS P. KELLEY, PRESI-
DENT, FAIRFIELD UNIVERSITY; AND STEPHEN FELDMAN,
PRESIDENT, WESTERN CONNECTICUT STATE UNIVERSITY

Mr. TRACHTENBERG. Thank you, Senator. It is a great honor to
have you and the committee here. Before Marilyn and Kim leave I
just want to express my hope that when they graduate from Water-
bury and Manchester they will consider applying to the University
of Hartford.

Senator WEICKER. The man never loss an opportunity. I can tell
you that. [Laughter.)

Mr. TRACHTENBERG. This financial aid business is serious stuff.
Senator Weicker, ladies and gentlemen, it is an honor to be the

first university president to address you today. All of us have a
good sense by now of the magnitude of the cutbacks being proposed
in Federal support for higher education and student aid. And most
of us are aware of what a slander it is to characterize most stu-
dents as playboys and playgirls with little more on their minds
than stereo sets and expensive vacations. That image may have
had some validity in 1939 when only 6 percent of the American
population attended college for any length of time. It has precious
little validity in 1985 when the typical student is employed part
time, as we have heard, and sometimes full time, as we have also
heard, in order to pay the costs and reap the benefits of higher
education. There is a profound paradox in the campaign of villifica-
tion that has been conducted against our colleges and universities
in order to soften up public opinion and to gain support for these
radical cutback' in Federal aid for our students.

Those who have tried to use their eloquence in order to demean
our institutions of higher education are persons who gained that
eloquence as students and teachers in the very schools they now
malign. [Applause.]

We have been told, for example, that a thoughtful parent might
well advise a son or daughter in high school not to go to college,
that such a parent might find it an act of wisdom to hand that boy
or girl a check for $50,000 and encourage his offspring to open an
entrepreneurial business instead of wasting time in the classroom.

It occurs to me that Secretary Bennett may be a candidate for
the directorship of the Small Business Administration except for
the fact the administration is doing away with the Small Business
Administration. [Applause.]

I submit to you that talk of this kind represents a highly regret-
table rebirth of what one distinguished historian called the strain
of anti-intellectualism in American life. I submit to you also that
remarks like these thrown out in so reckless a spirit could easily
affect the thinking of at least some boys and girls in ways that may
later cause some of them regret.
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The fact is that we live today in a society that has been trans-
formed through its system of higher education. Influential books
tell us that we live in an information society where power accrues
in the hands of those best able to understand, manipulate, and
transmit the kinds of words, concepts, and images that are first en-
countered at the college and university level.

In the universities of today it is departments of computer sci-
ence, mathematics, engineering, technology, and medicine that in-
troduce the student to the world he or she will have to inhabit and
within which that student will have to make both a life and a
living.

It is in departments of philosophy, communication, and lan-
guages that the student grapples with ethical decisionmaking and
acquires the skills that will enable America to maintain and
remain competitive in the international marketplace.

The students and college presidents who will come here today to
testify against the reckless, proposed cuts may seem to be drawn
from opposite polls of the college and university spectrum. In a
deeper sense, they are united by their realization that it is not only
they, but America as a whole and the American future that will be
hurt if those cuts are made.

There are heartening signs already that more and more Ameri-
cans understand this fact and are letting their political leaders
know it. Today's hearing can only help that process along, Senator.
It is one way of putting our Government on notice that America is
too important to be the subject of so ill advised an experiment
whose potential victims include the American economy.

With the permission of the committee I would like to share with ,

you a copy of an article which appeared in the February 18, 1985,
issue of New England Business magazine. It is entitled "The Other
Economy." It insightfully describes the circumstances under which
New England's nonprofit institutions represent one of the largest
and misunderstood elements in the country.

[The article referred to follows:]
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COVER STORY

The 'Other' Economy
New England's nonprofit institutions represent one of the largestand most

misunderstood ekments in the country.

It I had one wash, it would be to change
what we call the nonprofit s6.007 to
sat-e.tempt blows, It changes how
we think of the mita of the minim.

Iron. What it is Is a business," explains Jo.
wph Itettenotchel. ptesident of Beacon
Mmagemers Co, of Boston and the lot.

BIC 7 director of the Bird Foundation,
which was estabhshed by Ltd Inc of
East Walpole. Mass.

Iltettentichet, who has been in.
wired in nonprofit organization, manage.
mem and funding for the past 20 years.
echoes the thoughts of 7010/ Woolf %tic
wort in the nonprofit sector: In the annds
of most people, the assomation evoked
by the term nonprofit are mythical. Non.
profit. he continu es. n not synonymous
sith small, insignificant. pool!) managed
or low budget

The nonpiofit sectot n ohen pct.
coned to be a minute pan of the New En.
gland economy, employing only a handful
of people. and managed by unmeldy COM.
mem of buresuans and huge boards of
ectemonid daemon who tately make
MOM than token appearances But the
1110 largest nonprofit companies employ
more people than the region), 100 kiduts
industrials. In laCt, the revenues and bun.
waste appoach of many of the install
tons rank them among the reprint big.
gest fausineues. And, the supporten say
the best nonprofits ale run link different-
ly than welmanaged businesses.

And,pethaps most so than other big
businesses, the educational Institutmas,
hesPitaB, and public administration rank
as the largest employers in the region.
They inject millions of dollars into the
economy through the payment of salines
and the purchase of goods and services.
They are New England's "other"
economy
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a studs ho the Mosachaett Hari
tai Association !epis. that Ammo, in
Massachusetts generated more than s: :I
billion or API of all pawn dolly, in
the state en 191,2,11e nonprofit arts mass
Its, considered to be one of the mullet
components of the nonprofit seem. went
3 total of 1213 °When in Sea England
according to a 1111$ study by the Se. En.
gland Foualateon for the Arts Cindy.
nonprofit organizations 35 a whole eon
ulhute a vest deal to the upon, 007 only
because of the services they provide hot
also because of their very unpbk eco
none effect

This other mammy is ememely
verse It indwdes institutions in tams
Iron. health services. defense and SOCII
sic research. pebiec homing construction.
the arts. and much more. They are wyek
ing in widely deletent enterprises. with
the only comma thread their tascsempt
and nonprofit status. Hoeetheks, the
range is from operations with whirl.
bon dollar budget' to others that straggle
to spouse boon month to 'moth.

Exicunvg Giuntuaw?
One issue that seems to have been

addressed by all nonprofits in recent
ye an has been managentent.The scant.
it sector is ohm perceived to be numuu
aged or nonomanaged. While most &so
ton of nonprofit organization will agree
that this may have been ow in dant
yens, they contend now that the situation
is rapidly changing The issue at stale is
survival. Many nonprofit institutions that
don't become more businesslike and elfi
cunt will have a alkyd time sprucing In
the 19110s. This it true not only he the
small. nonprofit orfanizahons. but also
for the Luger °pennons.

"Ten years ago it was pretty moth
, carte blanche. Hospitals had carte

blanche to provide the seems they van
ed to They really ddn1 base to be ascots
caned with the bottom hoe as they see
today:says Dr. Match ell T. Rabbis. mese.
dent of Seth Israel Hospital in liostco.
Rabkin says that with cutbacks in sacra-
ment funding. and the mote sophisticated
behavior of badness as health-care buyer.
hospetah have btea forced to ughte a their
belts Hospitals also face the problem of
decreased compehoon. as the shay s& of
economic incentives in health are is cap
tared by those who ate paying the tills .
typIcally, American business. Asa result.
hospitals have had to become better Math
agcy and planners.

`Dries been are odyssey in lams of
strangit planning;says Ranin "lhe ins
tial concept foe hospitals three decades
ago was physical planning, The room
shifted horn bulldog buildings to tope{
to do program planning. Mote Merely
the notion has shifted horn long range
planning to stratrpc planning. nines

tonsmod
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nnNaJ
1110te ihOUCtliNt C % AU411111 .4 the env!.
ronm:nt Ind ot where the ensuonmem ii

going and how it is affecting the
institution

7O4150117 CcouieTrT104
Richard A Fueniak. donut of pub.

lie relations for the Massachusetts Hospi.
131 Association. agrees with Rabkin
Pormak says that competition is one of
the biggest problems facet; the health
cue industry

The hospital industry is more corn.
petitne than high tech.-says Pteriuk. Be.
cause of this competition and nnancial
cutbacks and budget caps. most hospitals
have had to ureamline their management
operations to become more efficient
and innovative. Hospitals are m a cow.
fate MO/Sanitation phase. Rozmak says
that 15% of the hospitals in the state have
reorganized in the last three or four years.
Many now have forprofit subsidiaries
such as home healthcare services as part
of the nonprofit structure. These subsid
tants are coed as a new method of raising
revenues for the nonprofit entity

While some hospitals =looking to.
ward nontraditional methods of raising
revenues, most are also Changing their
manageincrit practices:There isa tiendloi
ward being more businesslike and moving
into the areas of marketing and advents.
ing. Delivering health care is still the pro
miry goal of the hospitals, but they are
attemptog to do so to a more effiment,
effective manner. According to Rablun.
hospitals have focused on doing more
planning, budgeting and evaluation of
long and short ange plans.

Hospitals aren't the only nonprofits
that are becoming aware of the bottom
line and better management practices.
Higher education is also feeling the pm.
sure to become more businesslike

Melvin H. Bernstein. president of
Bernstein Group lie of Boston and se
mot fellow at the :Jew England Board of
Higher Education, says that because of
economic and cost pressures of recent
years, higher education his had to place
more emphasis on strategic planning. He
believes that higher education has always
had planning, but not in a structuted way.
Strategic planning has only come into
vogue within the last 10 ran.

`Greater emphasis on strain plan.
rung opened up new vistas; says Bern.
stein. 'People stalled to consider new
matketsfor enterprise and the external en.
wironment of the organization.'

now tom Sunwvat
Bernstein believes that the cynicism

of higher education as being poorly man
aged may have been true traditionally,
but that higher education is in a ptocess
of change. According to Bernstein. priv
vale institutions tend to be better man
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rundrne from 111111011 and philanihr.ps
unite pubic higher educztion was mere
interested in jrnwsth than elfestive man.
afement ptastices Doi h pm ate and pub.
tic higher education institutions base
been tufted to rees altszte therms:1.es
both academically and economically its
3 question Of surwsal," sass Bernstein
"When budgets were plentiful there
wasn't the pressure to hose efficient man.
afernent Faculties resisted efficient man.
*gement. and the schools had a more ace
&mac approach. They tried to thwart Is.
cal eficienctet- He believes that schools
have had to be more efficient and effec
me in raising revenues. selling services
and holding down costs.

The days of ruddy available money
and nonbusinesshke approaches to non.
profit management are quickly coming to
an end. There is a major trend for the
nonprofit sector to look away from goy
moment and increasingly toward the trackr
bonal business sector for contributions
and support. And when it does, it finds
that corporations will only support the in.
smutions that have, or arc capable of de
veloping. the management skills to keep
the organizations sunning.

'This decade is a watershed period,"
says Brateneicher. ''We will neon return
to the funding of the programs of the
past. The configuration of support is dra
matically different, Ronald Reagan may
have caused that, but it would have hap.
pened anyway for lots of reasons.' While
their funding is being cut. many are at the
same time facing increasing demands for
services because of cutbacks in govern.
Me117 programs. The pubhe sector is in.
aeasingly Woking toward nonprofits as a
resource Nonprofits ate coming undet
prestai on all sides and are baying to
kern to sunive in the 1910s.

Many people in the nonprofit sector
would aftee that nonprofits were never
forced to become more businesslike in the
past Although some nonprofit mantra.
tions were very of and effective.
that wasn't the case for all. When t he fund.
mg was readily available no one was real.
ly concerned with management practices.
'Somehow or other. financial good be hay.
ior. fiscal responsibility. organizational
surngth and development, and long.
range planning were seen as enemies of
carrying out your mission instesd of nn.
&intending that they are its fact really
part and patcel of the business of running
a taxexempt business." says
rteatenewher.

He contends that quite often most
nonprofit providers of services aren't
taught to worry about business matters.
fhey're taught to are about people."
Breiteneicher says. "but how the hel/ can
you case for the people if you can't keep
the doors open' They have to be business

continued
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people Planning and meal retronobil
dies men I It:tunes &int multi sled b.
an COIC.11 moral COVC171 shouldnt send
rots to the poorhouse. he adds.

Mans, people atone that part of the
problem is that there is little support trom
the 'swing communit).- and es en less
from the broader community as 3 whole
in helping nonprofits des elop the bum.
mess skills they need to sumo e There are
few good programs to fall back on in
terms of training 3nd ads lee There are a
few nascent efforts afoot, but they are few
and far between

Dreiteneicher aces Tufts University
of Medford. Mass.. as having one of the
best programs. The Utban and Envuon.
meet Policy program at Tufts is a two.
year master's program that includes train
ins in management of nonprofits. Most of
the students hose work expenence. and
their career goals are to work for and cad
nonprofit organizations

Robert M. Hollister. chairman of the
Tufts program, has a strong commitment
to the nonprofit sector. His department
1101 only offers twyear master's pro
gams. but also oneiweek. intensivetrain
mg sessions for nonprofit directors and
others in nonprofit management. This In
saute for Management and Community
Development was first offered last sum
our and will be offered this May This pro.
gram fills the void by assisting nonprofit
managers in increasing or des eloping the
skills they need to suppott their
organizations.

"The idea that nonprofits are mana
serially weak and need to adopt the man.
asement techniques of the pnvate sector
n a dangerous myth." contends Hollister
"There should be a commitment to in.
crease management techniques. but in a
way that makes sense for the nonprofits,
There should be an appreciation that be.
mg more effective isdifferent for nonpro
fits than for businesses in the pnsate see.
tor' Dueness school methods and ideas.
he says can't be directly applied to non.
profits; they are different with different
needs and different problems.

'The talent is out there to make
things happen. to keep orpnizaticns
alive; says Dreitencicher. it lust needs
to be supported and buttressed because
we put drdn't ask those things of them be.
fore.' He explains that the money pro.
Wed up until the :41son years didn't te
quire directors of nonprofits to be good
managers. 'What they wanted you to do
was either innocuous things or a cause de
pending on what they were funding.' Rob
Hollister of Tam beheses that 15 years
ago people thought that being on the tight
side and having good intentions were
enough. Today, people preparing for ea.
reels in nonprofits aren't lust talking
about the cause but also have a commit
rent to being effective leaders and ma nag
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Cr' the, 1.1%,? '0 She an undetit.milin
or cash low and budect managemem

VlIrt Mil, are now mJkiniteffrti tii
become more efficient and arctic Thew
hair to hod wass to stretch their fe
SOU NO hid .1% p.stt .if this. thei'ie red,.
cosered the point of difettora, no are
%mule to pick board members whO can
be a Aflame force in their institutions.
not ismn fur funcraising. but also to force
nonpronts to plan and In provide busi
zess etpcntse. areliGgitIther Ur. that a
board member can't 'check his brain at
the door

One of the most frequent frattnes of
nonpronu is the frailty of their board in
terms of the mu of people and the expec-
tations of what they'll do:says Hollister.
A nonprofit needs a good mix of re-
sources and skills in its ;ward members
The boardof directors of a nonprofit ors'.
nization is one resource that is free and
can prove to be invaluable.

They are also looking toward more
creathe means of financing. Most small.
and mediumsued nonprofits have no ac-
cess to credit The Commonwealth of
Massachusetts and the Associated Grant-
makers of Massachusetts have made
loans available through their emergency
loan lund. The lund is available for all
nonprofits with annual budgets under
S.500.000. Its purpose is to provide short.
term loans to assist nonprofit groups with
cash don problems resulting from delays
in reimbursements for services per-
formed This emergency loan fund is the
only one of its kind in the country Having
made almost 70 loans for a total of
S509.9:0. the fund has less than a re de-
fault rate. Given the risk factor, he's not
sure that financial institutions could do
any better Breiteneicher cites this as eii-
dence 01 the skill and responsible behav-
ior in the sector 'We beat the banks at
their own game. says Breitenetcher.

New England is not a hosts' table e nil.
ronment in terms of corporate phi lanth f0.
py, according to Breiteneicher 'There
isn't a lot of money. There aren't that
many easily accessible large philanthropic
sources We're an Importer of phtlamhro-
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Mr. TRACHTENBERG. I believe the administration's proposals to
cut student aid will seriously erode the ability of this aspect of the
New England economy that contributes not only to the direct goods
and services that it provides, but also the jobs and the economic
engine that it represents.

So, for example, I am advised by John Carson, the Connecticut
commissioner for economic development, that my modest universi-
ty is the 18th largest employer in greater Hartford and the 86th
largest employer in the entire State of Connecticut. We represent
an operating budget in excess of $50 million and have consistently
brcught in balanced budgets notwithstanding an endowment which
has only recently approached $12 million.

I would conclude my remarks by strongly urging our lawmakers
in Washington to thwart the ill-advised and pernicious attempts by
the Reagan administration to turn back the clock to some dark age
where only the sons and daughters of the rich would be allowed to
reap the benefits of an American higher education. Thank you very
much, Senator.

Senator WEICKER. And now President Giamatti of Yale. Steve
was not so bad, was he Bart?

Mr. Gummi. No, he was OK.
Senator WEICKER. Bart was down the other day. He said if you

let Trachtenberg go first nobody else is going to talk around here.
Mr. Gummi. The president and I spoke beforehand, Senator,

and he was just fine.
Good morning, sir. I am very pleased to have this opportunity to

testify before you and to speak publicly in opposition to the drastic
cuts in Federal student aid proposed by this administration.

Before I address the substance of these proposals I wish to em-
phasize strongly that I am not opposed to higher education assum-
ing a fair share of appropriate budget cuts in order to reduce our
national deficit. These proposals, however, are neither fair nor ap-
propriate.

Under the guise of curbing abuse, these cuts would result in the
immediate loss of $2.3 billion in direct aid to over 1 million finan-
cially needy students across America. This proposal is particularly
onerous because it attempts unabashedly to reverse this Nation's
200-year-old history of support for higher education.

And, finally and perhaps most important, these ill advised cuts
would erode steady movement we have made as a nation toward
equal access to higher education. The effects of these proposals will
be seen and felt in the lost aspirations of students whose choices
and options will be limited once again by the accident of family
wealth.

The administration proposes to reduce the Federal expenditures
for higher education in the fiscal year budget for 1986 by 25 per-
cent. Molt ag thg avings come from the elimination of aid to finan-
cially nee.Jit b3r4mitrgatarbitrary family income caps
for standardized nee s ansWifs fa

Further savings are sought by limiting all financial aid for an in-
dividual recipient to a maximum of $4,000 in Federal grants or sub-
sidized loans regardless of their need for more assistance.
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And, finally, the administration has proposed to eliminate com-
pletely all graduate level programs including those which have
focued on the lowest income and on minority students.

Secretary Bennett, attempting to minimize the harsh effects of
these cuts suggests that students will merely have to divest them-
selves of luxuries such as stereos and vacations and cars. Such a
comment trivializes the issue. The truth is much more sober. In ac-
tuality these cuts will, one, deprive the lowest income students of
sufficient funds for higher education.

Two, reduce access to capital for many students, graduate and
professional students in particular, who must borrow to attend any
institution of higher education.

Three, limit the choice of educational programs in institutions
for all but the students from the wealthiest families.

And, fourand I do not think I can eamphsize this enough, Sen-
ator, it will slash the most precious commodity of all, which is
hope.

At Yale University, for example, where more than 5,400 of the
10,000 graduate, professional and undergraduate students receive
some form of Federal assistance, 5,092 currently eligible students
would lose Federal student aid funds.

Half of those would lose vital loans because their family incomes
exceed $32,500; 2,200 financially needy students including over
1,500 graduate and professional students would lose a portion of
their guaranteed student loans because they require more than
$4,000 in Federal assistance to cover their educational expenses.

Yale's experience is not unusual. Over 1 million students in
public and private colleges and universities across the country
would suffer similar losses. The primary argument advanced by the
administration in support of these drastic proposals is that the Fed-
eral Government has become too involved in financing higher edu-
cation and that it is now time for university students and parents
to assume the costly burdens.

Let me, sir, set the record straight. Parents, students, and uni-
versities already carry the primary burden of financing higher edu-
cation, and if I may, I will cite an example from the place I know
best. Last year Yale devoted $26.2 million of its own funds to pro-
vide grants to 5,200 students of which $9.2 million went to under-
graduate students. In that year Yale College undergraduate grants
exceeded Federal grants by a ratio of 7 to 1.

Even with the availability of Yale and Federal grants Yale Col-
lege financial aid students and their parents are still responsible
for 55 percent of tuition, room, and board. In fact, Yale has long
required that undergraduate students contribute specified amount
of summer earnings and so-called self-help above that which their
parents are able to contribute.

This year the average undergraduate student has to contribute,
regardless of how much financial aid he or she gets, on the average
of about $4,900; 90 percent of the undergraduate financial aid stu-
dents borrow are borrowed from Federal institutional loan funds to
fulfill this requirement.

However, these are not grants; they are loans. They must be
repaid and they must be repaid with interest regardless of actual
earnings.

46-865 0-85-2 34
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The fact is all of our institutions have, as we heard from our dis-
tinguished students earlier, an extraordinary number of students
who are graduating from these institutions with remarkable debts
already.

Although the particulars vary from institution to institution, the
difficulties that Yale students face parallel those faced by students
in private and public institutions across the Nation. Even though
State governments contribute sufficient to reduce the tuition at
public colleges and universities, those students, I am sure my col-
league will tell us, also pay a substantial portion of tuition, room,
and board.

Like their counterparts in private institutions, students at public
universities still require grants and loans from the Federal Govern-
ment to finance a large share of these costs. The impact of the pro-
posed cuts, therefore, will not simply be felt in one sector of the
educational world, but will be felt everywhere.

It is obvious that this administration needs to spend more time
becoming familiar with the history of the Federal role in higher
education; if it did, it would understand that the Federal Govern-
ment has been a partner with universities and with colleges and
with students and their parents in funding education since, indeed,
the founding of this Nation.

A century and a half befor: the American Revolution, crown and
colonial grants and subventions founded and encouraged 10 col-
leges in this country. Commencing in 1785 and continuing into the
20th century the Federal Government has donated millions and
millions of dollars' worth of valuable property, and then lately
funds for research, lately meaning by the middle of the 20th centu-
ry, to both public and private institutions. The Federal Govern-
ment began to direct funds to individual students in the 20th cen-
tury as a way of providing access and choice first through the GI
bill and later through a variety of educational laws. Student aid
became the means of promoting access and choice among our di-
verse public and private institutions of higher education.

To encourage education was considered essential to the public
good of the Nation, and it is one of the most distinctive aspects of
our development as a country. Thus, the funds for student aid rep-
resent neither a spending binge nor greed by higher education for
unneeded subsidy. These funds represent the best of our national
character. They have been the catalyst for monumental change. By
virtue of the student aid programs, our students have been encour-
aged to hope for themselves. Our Nation's colleges and universities,
which is one of our greatest national treasures, have benefited
from rising standards of excellence. And if I can for the last time, I
will go back to the standard of Yale.

As you and I both know, Senator, Yale has undergone dramatic
changes in the past 30 years. In the fifties when we were, if I may
say so, both undergraduates at Yale college, the student body was
drawn from an homogenous socioeconomic group; 60 percent of our
classmates came from private secondary schools, and there were
only a handful of students from minority groups. Students who at-
tended Yale were those from families who could afford to pay its
tuition and fees.
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The picture began to change over 20 years ago when Yale Col-
lege adopted its existing "need-blind" admission policy under which
the university admitted top applicants regrdless of ability to pay
the full cost of their education.

A year later as it happens Congress enacted the Equal Opportu-
nity Act in response to the challenge posed by Brown v. The Board
of Education. As the commitment to access and choice became re-
ality students responded. As a result the entire fabric of Yale has
changed in a way which is reflective of the changes, thank God,
that have occurred in America.

Our student body is diversified and more talented; 17 percent of
last year's incoming freshman class came from minority groups, 60
percent from public secondary schools, and academic ability has
risen. This change would not have happened without the efforts
and leaderships of each member of that partnership, Government,
university, families, and individual students.

Nor is the work over; we cannot afford to respond only with talks
of dollars or deficit reduction. Americans are also a people of prin-
ciple who have only just begun to learn the worth of access, of
choice. The costs of the absence of access and choice are too well
known to us. We cannot, sir, afford as a nation to cut the hope for
a better life that comes through education. Thank you. [Applause.]

Senator WEICKER. The next witness is President DiBiaggio of the
University of Connecticut. John.

Mr. DIBIAGGIO. Thank you, Senator Weicker. I, too, appreciate
this opportunity to testify before you and the subcommittee on the
topic of student financial aid. I would remind you in doing so, Sen-
ator, that I represent not only the University of Connecticut, but I
also serve as chairman of the committee on Federal legislation and
as a member of the executive committee of the National Associa-
tion of State Universities and Land Grant Colleges.

It seems to me imperative to suggest a context for this discussion
before beginning. The interrelationship which knit together the na-
tional security, the national economy, and the status of our teach-
ing and research universities have been superbly documented over
the past decades.

What is most troubling about the proposed student financial aid
reductions is not just the many ways in which these cuts will cur-
tail opportunity for deserving students; equally disturbing is that
such a proposal ignores the fact that higher education in general
and student financial aid in particular are but one corner of a web
of interdependence which has as its other anchor points the Na-
tion's defense needs and the national economy. Unraveling one
corner sends tremors across the entire structure and poses distinct
threats to the future of the whole.

The administration's 1986 budget reflects what I would call radi-
cal cuts for higher education amounting to a 25-percent reduction
below current adjusted levels. The vast majority of this reduction is
proposed to be taken from student financial aid programs. I will
comment on the impact of such a reduction on the student body of
my current institution in just a moment.

Before doing so, however, I feel I must underscore the ricochet
effect such a deep cut would have in other vital areas of our na-
tional interest over the next period of time.

I .:11.1,
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The scientific and technologic advances upon which our Nation's
defense programs are based and maintained are the products by an
overwhelming majority of research by scholars at colleges, and uni-
versities. Basic science and medical research undertaken within
higher education institutions accounts for an incredible rate of
return, $13 for every $1 invested in biomedical research, for in-
stance, which nets the American economy millions of dollars in the
form of additional jobs, increased employee productivity, and im-
proved health of our work force.

And I would add parenthetically, Senator Weicker, that we have
appreciated your support for scientific research and particularly
your opposition to the immoral if not illegal reduction in the
number of grants proposed by the National Institutes of Health
after that number was recommended by the Congress in its last
session.

Wholesale restriction of educational opportunity such as that
proposed in the administration's financial aid cuts imposes an omi-
nous lien on our Nation's capacity to deal with its future.

As important as it is to focus on the short term consequences of
so drastic a curtailment of student access and opportunity as these
proposed student aid reductions represent, that is only one side of
the equation. In the longer term the effect of these reductions in
higher education investment is to restrict and diminish the leader-
ship capabilities of our entire Nation.

It is in that context, therefore, that I share with you the follow-
ing brief summary of the major impact on the University of Con-
necticut students of proposed Federal budget reductions.

At the University of Connecticut our concern is in three basic
areas: The proposed $4,000 ceiling on total Federal aid for any indi-
vidual student in a single year from any source; the proposed
family income cap of $32,500 in determining eligibility for Federal
student guaranteed loans; and, the proposed $1,900 ceiling on Pell
grants.

First, the proposed $4,000 ceiling on total individual Federal aid
in any single year; an estimated 2,265 students are now receiving
Federal aid at the University of Connecticut of approximately
$13,485,000 or an average of $5,950 per student. The impact of the
proposed reductions for the University of Connecticut is estimated
to be about $4.5 million.

This would represent a reduction per student of $1,954.
Second, family income cap for guaranteed student loan eligibil-

ity; some 5,900 students at our institution are recipients of guaran-
teed student loans totaling $11,400,000. Of these students, 2,800
have family incomes which would exceed the proposed ceiling and
would, therefore, be ineligible for this aid. Proposed reduced fund-
ing here would total for our institution approximately $5,800,000 or
an average reduction of $2,071 in educational funds currently avail-
able to these students.

And, finally, Pell grant ceilings; approximately 2,500 students
and these are the neediest of all of our studentsare currently
supported by these grants at the university for a total of $2.1 mil-
lion. Our best estimates indicate that this important means of stu-
dent support would be reduced by at least a half a million dollars
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under the administration's proposed reductions, and that would
impact again the most needy students that we enroll.

Now, my colleagues within the other segments of public higher
education and from the independent sector will have similar
impact estimates for you, I know. Interestingly and importantly,
they will report to you on areas other than those which I have
mentioned as being of primary importance to the University of
Connecticut. Each of us is dealing with a slighty different student
population reflecting the board spectrum of educational resources
traditionally available in the Northeast region.

Connecticut, like New England generally, is blessed, I believe,
with a very diverse array of educational institutions to meet the
broad range of student demand and societal need in this region.
Far from presenting, however, a luxurious menu which can easily
be pared, this multiplicity of institutions reflects the region's par-
ticular need.

Possessing no abundant supplies of natural resources, the region
has based its economy on high technology and sophisticated service
industries which require a highly trained workforce. In essence a
well educated workforce is the primary natural resource for the
Northeast region, a region whose economy is so largely based on its
brain power as opposed to traditional heavy industry and is espe-
cially adversely affected by the disruption of educational access.

An additional program earmarked form ajor reduction in the ad-
ministration's budget is one entitled--and you have heard me
speak to this before, SenatorSpecial Programs for Students from
Disadvantaged Backgrounds or TRIO. This group of support pro-
grams provides funds and special services to enable low income,
first generation and physically handicapped students to pursue
postsecondary educational programs as well as training persons to
work with members of these groups.

The administration proposes to reduce TRIO funding by E' er-
cent. Now, our own experience locally has mirrored tho anal
trend which has proven that low income and first generation col-
lege students having the benefit of TRIO programs and services are
more than twice as likely to remain in school than students with-
out such support.

To reiterate our commitment for access and opportunity to these
disadvantaged groups in the face of a fiscal commitment scheduled
to be cut in half is hypocritcal. To remove this funding in the face
of explicit Federal guidelines and regulations, in my opinion, is dis-
ingenuous irony.

As I commented at the beginning of these remarks, I believe we
make an enormous mistake if we view the proposed massive reduc-
tions in student Federal financial aid as having impact primarily
upon a single generation of students.

As critical as that aspect of the issue really is, it is imperative to
look beyond this perceived special interest group to the longer term
national interests and the jeopardy in which it will be placed if we
succomb to the temptation to indeed mortgage our Nation's brain
power. Thank you. [Applause.]

Senator WEICKER. The next witness is Father Aloysius Kelley,
the president of Fairfield University. Father, nice to have you with
us.
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Father KELLEY. Senator, thank you for the opportunity to testify.
In recent weeks some of the media focused attention on Cather-

ine, one of our students at Fairfield University. She is an econom-
ics major, a member of the field hockey team, and a senior. She
spent last summer in India with her idol, Mother Theresa, working
in the most impoverished areas of that country scrubbing floors
and caring for desperately poor infants.

Now she is back on campus completing her final year and urging
others to become involved with those less fortunate than them-
selves.

There are many Catherines at Fairfield University and on other
campuses throughout the Nation. And I thought of them as I read
recent characterizations of college students that concentrated on
stereos, beaches, and cars. Broad unsubstantiated allegations were
made and distorting hyperbole was employed as a smokescreen to
avoid a realistic appraisal of the financial aid needs of college stu-
dents.

Let us rather use plain and simple language and hard data to
examine the consequences of the proposed cuts. About 60 percent
of Fairfield students receive some form of institutional, Federal,
State, or other aid, including guaranteed student loans.

Our neediest students require as much as $6,500 per year from
Federal sources supplemented by $2,000 from our own resources
and $1,500 from the State of Connecticut in order to benefit from a
Fairfield University education. The tuition and fees for incoming
freshmen next fall will total more than $7,000 while room and
board will amount to over $3,700.

At nearly $11,000 plus $1,000 for books and other expenses, Fair-
field is in the middle range of American independent universities.
However, the imposition of a $25,000 family income limitation on
eligibility for participation in campus-based Federal programs
would exclude 68 percent of our students who are 'urrently receiv-
ing Pell grants, supplemental educational opportunity grants,
work-study assistance, or national direct student loans.

In addition to the impact on campus-based programs, we are con-
cerned by the damage that would be done by placing a maximum
$32,500 on family income for guaranteed student loans. We calcu-
late that under this maximum, 61 percent of our students would
lose their eligibility for these low interest loans.

At present there is a $30,000 limit on family income with the un-
derstanding that loans are available to families earning beyond the
maximum when need is demonstrated. At Fairfield many students
come from large families. Half of all our students currently have
brothers or sisters attending college. The family with an income of,
say, $40,000 is certainly ahead of many Americans. However, when
two or three children attend college simultaneously at over $10,000
each, the amount of remaining disposable income requires signifi-
cant sacrifices.

Fairfield University now has a "need-blind" admission policy. We
accept students based on their merit not on their pocketbook. Al-
ready a significant number of students are unable to accept our
offer of admission because they cannot, even with help, afford to
attend.
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The proposed limitation would increase that number dramatical-
ly. Since 1981-82 through the current academic year Fairfield was
forced to increase tuition by 37 percent. During the same period we
increased assistance to students from university resources by 115
percent, from $890,000 to $1.9 million.

As a still maturing universityour first commencement was in
1951we are largely tuition dependent and not yet in a position to
subsidize our students heavily from a large endowment.

And yet since 1981-82 Federal assistance to our students dropped
by 31.4 percent, from 6.2 million to 4.2. Similarly, guaranteed stu-
dent loans slipped by 33 percent, from 5.2 million to 3.5. The pro-
posed guidelines would wipe out another 2.1 million in guaranteed
student loans for 915 students.

The proposed changes in assistance will rebuild walls of dollars
around many of our universities, especially the independent ones,
and promote a return to elitism. The proposed caps on Federal fi-
nancial aid programs will reduce and in some cases eliminate free
choice in selecting a college based on a specific educational pro-
gram or religious affiliation or the closeness and personal contact
of a small educational community.

We know that lower and middle income families face a financial
strain when a child goes to college. There is a loss of a young per-
son's contribution to the household's income as well as the educa-
tion costs. Why then are we penalizing the families that are willing
to borrow, pay the interest, and sacrifice. Our priorities are con-
fused.

There is a strange irony that pervades the proposed changes in
financial aid. Government leaders, the media, presidents of private,
independent institutions and public institutions agree that the revi-
sions would have the greatest impact on the independent colleges.

The current administration in Washington has repeatedly said it
wants to get government off the backs of the people and maintains
that government should remove itself from the areas that can be
served by the private sector. However, in the field of education we
are faced with proposals that would seriously weaken and in some
cases destroy the private sector and deny help to those who wish to
help themselves.

Senator, thank you again for the opportunity to make these com-
ments. [Applause.]

Senator WEICKER. Thank you very much, Father Kelley. And
now the testimony of Stephen Feldman, president of Western Con-
necticut State University. President Feldman, nice to have you.

Mr. FELDMAN. Senator Weicker, thank you and I join my col-
leagues in our appreciation for your having this hearing today.

At Western Connecticut State University, which is a State sup-
ported institution, our tuition, room, board, and fees for an in-State
student is approximately $3,900. For an out-of-State student this
would be $5,800. And yet of all of our full-time students, 48 percent
still receive various types of loans, grants, or work-study moneys
because of financial need.

Many of these students are first generation college students who
obviously will pay much greater taxes and make more meaningful
contributions to society because of their education.
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Yet these are the very students who will most likely be driven
from colleges and universities if the proposed cuts are made in Pell
grants and the guaranteed student loan programs.

One week ago today the Wall Street Journal had an editorial
that said only 300 students came to Washington to lobby against
.these program reductions, while 120,000 spent their vacations on
beaches this spring, an obvious indication to the Journal in their
editorial that the students were not in financial need.

It occurred to me that many of the students who are truly in
need were neither in Washington lobbying nor in Florida vacation-
ing. They were working part time to help pay for [applause] to help
pay for the expenses of college which we continuously drive up
upon them.

Our institution as a whole will not be hurt because of these cuts
in Federal aid. Our admission standards are high, and many stu-
dents who currently choose to go to private universities and will no
longer be able to afford that option and will be forced to go to a
State university will certainly choose to go to West Connecticut.

We will be educating some of these students who currently have
the choice and have taken the option of going to a private universi-
ty. However, many of our own current students would not receive
any education at all. On balance our university may end up with
more students, but society as a whole would certainly suffer and
many of the private universities who are running their institutions
with fewer tax dollars would also suffer and some of them in the
Nation would probably close.

It is incredible to me that any one above $32,500 in income would
not be eligible for certain loans and grants. In today's environment
in Connecticut two laborers or two clerical workers married to
each other are likely to have income in excess of $32,000 a year.

To tell this couple that they can afford to send even one student
to even a State-supported university is just out of touch with reali-
ty. And if this couple has two or three children in school at once,
which is very likely, they would have to make some very difficult
choices about which of their children cannot continue with their
education.

In addition, to say to a student from a family with income of
$14,000 per year who wishes to borrow money to go to college that
he cannot receive loans plus grants of over $4,000 a year is effec-
tively telling him that he cannot go to the college of his choice and
that he may not be able to go to college at all. The loan program
and Pell grants are truly not giveaway programs. They are invest-
ments which will yield a quite high return on investment in the
way of tax dollars coming back from the higher taxes that will be
paid by a higher wage earner for the next 40 years of his or her
working life and through the productivity that he or she will con-
tribute to society.

Very often the public is upset when it hears about abuses in
these programs and the press usually points out the abuses, the
one professional who did not pay back his loans, and this becomes
the headlines that the public jumps on and feels we should cut the
programs.

I also get upset when I hear about abuses in programs. And I
would recommend that we vigorously attack the abuses not the
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programs. Congress has the authority to pass a law that someone
who participates in a Federal loan program cannot be relieved of
the obligation of these loans if he or she declares bankruptcy. We
can also deprive anyone who is in default of one of these loans
from being a Federal employee or from benefiting from Federal
Government programs such as FHA mortgages. Let us attack the
abuses and make the public very comfortable that these moneys
are being wisely invested. Let us not attack the programs that are
desperately needed by so many of our young people in the Nation
today.

Higher education, particularly in the Northeast, is going to face
dramatic enrollment declines in the next decade for demographic
reasons. We will be watching the number of students and high
school graduates in Connecticut decline by over 30 percent in the
next 10 years. This is a period of time when universities will have
to struggle in order to maintain the high quality educational stand-
ards and investments in plant and equipment that will enable us to
maintain world leadership in science, in technology, and business.
When you ask the chief executive of a high technology firm why
does he choose to move to Route 128 or to Connecticut or to the
Silicon Valley he talks about the high quality educational institu-
tions nearby.

If we lower the quality of these institutions and he quality of our
students we will also be hurting very, very badly the businessmen
and businesses in our State and in the Nation who pay the taxes to
support the entire country.

Legislation that would drive further potential graduates out of
our universities would damage the individual student, would
damage our universities for decades to come and would, therefore,
have a negative impact on society at large.

Every university can point to alumni who are major corporate
CEO's, outstanding scientists, doctors, lawyers, and political lead-
ers. If some of these universities are forced to close and if we drive
other students away from a university education, we are hurting
the nation in a way that will not easily be reversed.

Senator, it is difficult to actually stress to you in a few minutes
how much damage this proposed legislation would have on the
higher education community, especially in the next decade. Thank
you. [Applause.]

[The prepared statement of Mr. Feldman follows:]
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TESTIMONY BY STEPHEN FELDMAN
PRESIDENT Or WESTERN CONNECTICUT STATE UNIVERSITY

March 29, 1985

at a hearing conducted by Senator Lowell Weicker

President Reagan's budget for higher education is 25%,

or $2.3 billion below the fiscal year 85 levels. All but

$100 million of the cuts would come from student aid.

The Administration's budget document stated that only

326,000 fewer students will be served by the Guaranteed Student

Loan program. However, in another section of the budget it

is stated that 30% of all current GSL loans go to families

with incomes above $32,500. If the 30% figure is correct,

then almost one million students will be effected. In addition,

800,000 middle income students will be dropped from eligibility

from Pell grants. Finally, a $4,000 annual cap would be

imposed on total aid that any student could receive from all

federal programs. This would reduce the awards for 430,000

students, half of whose families have incomes below $12,000

a year.

In Connecticut the situation is even more critical due

to the high cost of living. The Connecticut Student Loan

Foundatioh reports that 55% of student borrowers come from

families with incomes over $30,000.
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At Western Connecticut State University, which is a state-

supported institution, our tuition, room, board, books and fees

would still cost the student $3,928 per year, plus normal

personal expenses. This is for in-state students. An out-of-

state student would have to pay $5,748. Of all our full-time

undergraduate students, 484 still receive various types of loans,

grants, or work-study monies because of financial need. Many

of these students are first generation college students who

obviously will pay greatly increased taxes and make more meaning-

ful contribution to society because of their education. Yet

many of these students will be driven from college and not be

able to attend if the proposed cuts are made in Pell grants and

the Guaranteed Student Loan programs, and the $4,000 cap on total

aid is imposed.

Our institution as a whole will not be hurt, because many

students who choose to go to more expensive private universities

today will no longer have that option and will be forced to go

to a state university. We will be educating some students who

currently go to private institutions. However, many of our (.7,v+/

current students would not receive any education at all. It is

incredible to me that anyone above $32,500 in income would not

be eligible for certain loans. In today's environment, a

secretary married to a cab driver is likely to have joint

income in excess of $32,500 per year. To tell this couple
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that they can afford even the state university tuition of

$3,900 per child per year, is just totally out of touch with

reality. In addition, to say to a student from a family with

income of $14,000 per year who wishes to borrow money to go to

college, that he cannot receive loans plus grants of over

$4,000 a year, is effectively telling hin that he cannot go

to college - period.

The loan programs and Pell grants are truly not give-away

programs. They are investments which will yield higher tax revenue

and a more productive society in the future.

Very often the public is upset when it hears about abuses

in these programs. I also get upset when I hear about the

abuses and would recommend that we attack the abuses - not the

programs. lie can pass a law that anyone who wishes to parti-

cipate in a federal loan program cannot be relieved of the obli-

gaions of these loans if he or she declares bankruptcy. We

can also deprive anyone who is in default of one of these loans

from being a federal or state government employee or from

benefiting from any government programs, such as FHA mortgages.

Let's attack the abuses and make the public comfortable that

these monies are being wisely invested.

Higher education, particularly in the northeast, is

going to be facing dramatic enrollment decline in the next

decade for demographic reasons. We will be watching the

number of high school students in Connecticut decline by over

30% in the next decade. This is a period of time when universities
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will have to struggle in order to maintain the high quality

educational standards and investments in plant and equipment

that will enable us to mainta.n world leadership in science,

technology, and business.

Legislation that would drive further potential graduates

out of universities would damage the individual student, would

damage our universities for decades to come, and would therefore

have a negative impact on society at large. Every university

can point to alumni who are major corporate CEOs, outstanding

scientists, doctors, lawyers, and even political leaders. If

some of these universities are forced to close and if we drive

other students aw- from a university education, we are damaging

the nation in a way that will not be easily reversed. It is

difficult to stress to you how much damage this proposed legis-

lation would do to the higher education community.

Senator WEICKER. Thank you very much. I have a few questions
to address to this panel.

Before addressing those questions I'd like to repeat words that
were stated by Steve Trachtenberg and Bart Giamatti. At the end
of, I believe, Steve's statement he indicated "I would like to con-
clude my remarks by strongly urging our lawmakers in Washing-
ton to thwart the ill advised and pernicious attempts by the
Reagan administration to turn back the clock to some dark age
where only the sons and daughters of the rich would be allowed to
reap the benefits of an American higher education."

And then also the specific remarksthis thought, I might add,
was threaded through all the testimony given here today by these
distinguished gentlemen. And again as in Bart's statement where
be said, "Thus, the effects of these proposals would be seen and felt
in the lost aspirations of the students whose choices and options
will be limited once again by the accident of family wealth."

And in his testimony Bart alluded to the fact that we were very
close in temis of our undergraduate years at Yale University and
that the percentages at Yale today as compared to when we went
there relative to low-income students from low income families, rel-
ative to those who come from public education as compared to pri-
vate, those percentages have shifted drastically.

I have been greatly blessed in being a Senator from this State
now for 15 years. And I wish you could share with me the personal
experiences relative to higher education in the sense of the parents
that I talk to. And they are not the parents that I knew whose chil-
dren went to Yale with me. I would meet those parents at country
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clubs and board rooms and the doctors' offices and in the high
income levels of American society, and there is certainly nothing
wrong with that.

But the parents I meet today as a Senator from this State, they
are repairing a road; they are in a supermarket or a barber shop,
in the drugstore, driving equipment, teaching school. That is the
change that has occurred in our lifetime.

I do not know how you condemn a system that has created that.
And that in effect is what is happening here today. We can talk all
the rhetoric we want to, but the condemnation is in those figures
presented to the Congress of the United States by the administra-
tion.

So I realize there are deficiencies in education as there are defi-
ciencies in government. But I think it is a record to be proud of,
and the record really comes through in both the pride of those par-
ents as they speak to me about their sons and daughters in college;
and then the other duty that every politician has of addressing
graduations, the pride that shows in their faces at the graduation
of their children. That is a pride I think we can all share as a
nation. [Applause.]

Mr. Bennett has suggested that many colleges are diluting their
admissions standards by accepting unqualified students because
they want the government money those students will bring. Could I
have a comment on that from any or all?

Mr. GIAMATTI. Excuse me, sir. I restrained from talking about
Mr. Bennett particularly, but you offered me this opportunity, so I
think I will. Thank you very much.

Mr. Bennett had a whole set of comments and President Trach
tenberg is right. There was an antieducational, antiacademic, and
anti-intellectual strain in what he said. Those three strains are not
necessarily synonomous, but they came together.

He also alleged that a report proved that undergraduate curricu-
la are dissheveled in this country. I think all of that is out of date.
I think that the fundamental perception that he has of college as
being a place where people go to escape the real world is absolutely
wrong. I think he profoundly misunderstands the extent to which
the college student todayand we heard some remarkable, elo-
quent testimony this morning, particularly where there is a set of
younger brothers and sistersthe college student today is pro-
foundly responsible and senses the responsibility for the family.

I think the greatest wasted natural resource in this country is
the idealism of the young people in colleges today, which is why I
found it such a massive insult to everybody's intelligence to talk
about the divestitures of stereos, vacations, and cars.

I think he profoundly misunderstands the extent to which col-
leges and universities, to answer your question, do not argue for
this Federal assistance because it is a form of profit or surplus or
revenue to the college. We are not in the business of making
money. We are in the business of providing a process. It is called
the process of education.

It is historically in this country the way by which one made one-
self an American, whatever that is. The more people who can
engage that, to the extent to which their guts and their brains and
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their character and their talent and their zest and their intellectu-
al curiosity will take them, the better the nation will be.

Universities and colleges are not asking to engage in this part-
nership because it is simply for them a source of revenue. It is a
relationship between the institution and the individual student
which is in fact where the educational process occurs.

It is on behalf of the students who are the most precious asset
that a community or a country holds. Its young people are its most
precious asset and that is what we are talking about. [Applause.]

We are talking about a matter of principle as well as a matter of
money.

Mr. FELDMAN. Senator Weicker, if I may, I think Secretary Ben-
nett has spent too much time in Washington. The students are not
going to universities today to avoid the draft; they are going to the
universities borrowing the money because they thinkthey desire
an education and they are willing to take a loan with the hope of
paying that back.

The institutions themselves, if they would lower admissions
standards and lower quality, they would be offering that serious
minded student a poorer quality product. There is no easier way to
lose students than to lower the quality of the product that they are
getting. The only way we can survive is by raising admission stand-
ards, raising the quality of our institutions; that is the way we at-
tract more applications and attract more students. The poorer qual-
ity institutions are the ones that will struggle. The institutions
doing reasonably well are raising quality at every level because the
student that is borrowing thousands of dollars, as we heard in ear-
lier testimony, to go to a university is sure as hell going to demand
a high quality product for that money that he is going to have to
pay back. And I do not think there is any question there has not
been a dimunition of quality at the educational institutions.

Also if I could add on to what President Giamatti said, we really
do not work on a percentage of profits. Whatever is there is turned
back to the students in the form of either lower tuition the follow-
ing year, on better equipment, on better plant, on a better educa-
tional quality. Therefore, we are not going to hurt our educational
quality for the sake of increasing profit sharing. That is not the
way the universities work.

He is really not in touch with reality when he makes those state-
ments.

Mr. TRACHTENBERG. The Secretary of Education really ought to
get educated about education in this country. [Applause.]

Senator WEICKER. Father Kelley.
Father KELLEY. Senator, I think the issue of quality is really crit-

ical. You must realize that putting together a university budget is
always an exercise in compromise. We are never able to allocate as
many resources as we would like to any segment of the university.
But the more that we have to try and make upand I stress "try"
because we simply cannot do itthe more that we have to try and
make up for what we are losing from Federal sources, the less we
have to put into those things which are going to enhance the qual-
ity of the education that we are offering. That is extremely impor-
tant. The more that we lose, the more that we have to devote to
financial aid, the less we can put into acquisition for the library,
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into computer equipment, and to all the other things that en-
hance-

Mr. GI/Mm-rt. And faculty salaries.
Father Kelley. Yes. Faculty salaries. All those things are abso-

lutely essential to preserve and to encourage that quality that Mr.
Bennett claims that he is concerned about while he seems to be set
on a course to hurt it very, very seriously.

Mr. TRACHTENBERG. Senator, you pointed out that the United
States was an increasingly aging country. In the years to come that
aging population will be looking to Social Security, Social Security
that will be supported by an increasingly smaller group of young
people. If we have a group of young people who when they were
going through college were not assisted by their Government, were
not socialized into feeling some sense that society had a responsibil-
ity for them and that they subsequently have a responsibility for
society, we could see a situation in which today's generation of
young people repudiates the older generation and says you did not
care for us when we were helpless; we are not going to care for you
when you are helpless, a group that turns its back on Social Securi-
ty and says what you have trained us to become is a "me genera-
tion" in a way that will make the so-called "me generation" of a
decade ago seem modest by comparison. I think the value added to
our society by colleges of all sortsand we have a very wide range
of institutions represented here todayis extraordindary and
beyond the measurement of these Federal programs. [Applause.]

Senator WEICKER. John.
Mr. DIBIAGGIO. I suppose I did not criticize the Secretary because

I do not think that is what we are all about. I do not think his com-
ments were significant enough to even be paid any attention to. I
think that that is perhaps the way we should view them.

I think he has a real misunderstanding of what has happened to
the educational process both in terms of opportunity and in terms
of what we are trying to achieve in our institutions today which we
did not achieve a few generations ago when he was a stt'dent.

I think to suggest that the students are not qualified is inappro-
priate. The qualifications may be somewhat different. We may
have uplifted expectations of our Nation to a degree through a
number of actions starting with the GI bill where many, many
young men and women went to school who would not have attend-
ed colleges prior to that time and I think have contributed enor-
mously to the progress of our society through a series of acts sup-
porting student aid which have been supported by every President,
Republican or Democrat, since Truman except for this President of
the United States.

Now, I think that that is important, that indeed we do measure
qualification in a different way and we do upgrade expectation. We
have all seen cases, many, many cases of students who come to us
who on the basis of standardized measurements, be those examina-
tions like SAT's or grade point averages in high school, would not
at one time have had an opportunity to go on to higher education,
but have turned out to be remarkable performers. And most of
those students are from financially disadvantaged backgrounds be-
cause, Senator, as you well know, the sons and daughters of the af-
fluent were able to attend colleges, rather expensive colleges in the
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past even though they did not necessarily, despite what Mr. Ben-
nett says, have the qualifications, as he defines them, that were re-
quired.

I think that that is an important consideration. Second, to
assume that because an earlier generation was able, if you will, to
work its way through collegeand indeed I fall into that category
myselfand to assume that students can do that today as well is
specious.

When I attended a public university it cost roughlyand it was
a fine public university$800 a year, $800 for room and board and
tuition. Now, by working through the summer I could save up-
wards to $500, and by having a job during the academic year I
could earn the remainder.

A student cannot earn the $5,000 over a summer necessary to
attend the University of Connecticut much less the $13,000 or
$14,000 necessary to attend Yale University. It is an impossibility
and the Secretary should come to appreciate that.

Now, you eloquently stated it. If indeed that is the case, if indeed
the expectation is that the students will have to pay their own way
or a greater portion of that, exactly what you desc-ibed earlier is
going to occur, and that is that students will not be going on to fine
institutions. I thought that Steve Feldman made a point that I
want to build upon. You would think that all of us in the public
sector would now be crowing because indeed students will be
driven, if this were to pass, from the private sector to the public
sector. And those will be superior students because they will in
many cases be students who have had the advantage of attending
fine high schools and have performed very well on standardized ex-
aminations.

What will that mean to the public institutions? It means that we
will indeed be compelled to admit those students on a competitive
basis driving students out at the margin who now are the students
I spoke of earlier, students who perhaps did not appear to have the
potential because of circumstances beyond their control, having at-
tended schools that were not as competitive as those that some of
their contemporaries had attended, and in doing so we will deny
not only access, but I think we will damage the future of our
Nation.

Senator WEICKER. Thank you very much. [Applause.]
One last question for the group as a whole; one question that

staff has in my book here I am not going to ask, but I will read it.
It explains itself, it seems to me. The question devised by staff is:
During Reagan's first term Michael Deaver was one of his key ad-
visers. One of the reasons Mr. Deaver reportedly gave for leaving
the White House was that he could not afford to educate his chil-
dren on $72,000 a year.

Question: Do you not find it ironic that an administration official
who cannot afford to educate his children on $72,000 per year
would propose that student aid should not be made available for
anybody making more than $32,500 a year? [Applause.]

Every now and then staff does something right. [Laughter.]
Mr. GiAmATri. Senator, I once had the privilege of having dinner

with the Deavers about 3 years ago. Mrs. Deaver told me that she
had living in her house a college student who had had to drop out
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because she could not afford to pay her tuition because of cuts in
Federal loans.

So the Deavers had a great deal of experience, and one hopes
that the Reagans and the Deavers will get together again.

Senator WEICKER. The last question that I do have is one that
was touched upon in John's last remarks. But I would like to ask it
of the panel as a whole. A number of people have suggested that if
the President's proposals are enacted that there will be a major
shift in enrollment from private schools to public schools. Such a
shift would require the appropriation of substantial additional
funds from the State legislature.

No. 1, do you agree. And, two, in your opinion, would the Con-
necticut State Legislature be likely to make such appropriations.

Mr. DIBIAGGIO. I am leaving the State; I can say anything I
want. It is like all the other suggestions that have been made by
this administration, that the States assume more responsibility for
many, many programs. This State certainly could not do that very
quickly. I do not think that is even reasonable. I do not think it is
very likely; I do not think it is even healthy.

But putting that aside, we could not increase our enrollments
rapidly enough to incorporate all those students, and that would
mean there would be a number of students that would not attend
college at all. In fact, there might be a number of students who
would not anyhow because they were frightened of costs. And so
they might choose not to attend any institution, which would be
the greatest tragedy.

You know this, Lowell; the State is not in a position, this State
and this State is a State that is in reasonably good economic
orderbut even this State could not assume that kind of responsi-
bility. And it certainly could not do it rapidly enough to in any way
accommodate all the students that it would be required to accom-
modate.

Mr. TRACHTENBERG. The impact, I think, on minority and par-
ticularly black and Hispanic students would be extraordinary. And
I think that there is a whole group of young people at the margin
of society that have only recently begun to see the plausibility of
their attending colleges and universities. They would be discour-
aged from that and would conclude that the curtain had come
down on the opportunity for them to participate in the American
dream.

We are very lucky in this country that groups that have been at
the margin, when they have talked about revolution, when they
have talked about radical ideas, they have not talked about bring-
ing our society down, but rather have talked about breaking down
the door and getting in.

They have not wanted to burn the banks; they wanted to get into
tbat board room. They have not talked about burning the country
clubs; they have talked about becoming members of those country
clubs.

And it has been the colleges and the universities of this country,
both the public and the private institutions that have provided
access to those board rooms and those country clubs and to full
participation in the American fabric. I think that is really what we
are talking about here today, Senator.
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Mr. DIBIAGGIO. Senator, one last comment if I might, and it is a
technical one, but I think it is a very important one that perhaps
the students are not too much aware of, but those of us who deal
with these issues on a day-to-day basis of course are.

And that is that if the Pell grant supplemental is not funded, the
cutbacks could be immediate in Pell grant support. And there are
students now planning for attendance this fall who would be im-
pacted upon. What we are talking about here is fiscal year 1986 in
our testimony, which is a year off, and that is important. But with-
out the Pell grant supplemental our students will suffer this very
fall. And I would urge you to continue your support of assuring
that that supplemental is passed.

Senator WEICXER. John Doyle informs me that we are about $800
million behind on the Pell grant and that should be included in the
first supplemental, which I. would suspect would come to the
Senate right after Easter.

I would like to thank all of you for your testimony. I would
really again like to reemphasize the point that was also made
about these moneys that we are talking about being an investment.
I understand full well that there is money that the Federal Gov-
ernment spends that is nonproductive. Once spent it is gone. What
we are talking about here is entirely different. This money comes
back, not just the money that was put out, but comes back many
fold. I started off my remarks by asking you to judge these things
not just as a matter of your heart, but judge them as a fiscal
matter.

And you can do this with education. You really have to ask your-
self if the money is not spent, what are you going to be spending it
on and how much are you going to be spending. You will not be
spending it on hope, as Bart indicated. You will be spending it on
welfare. You will be spending it, in other words, on support not in
the sense of creating self-sufficiency. The great tragedy is that we
did not spend this money earlier. And we have to pay for that now.

You know, I also like, not as a matter of drawing any sympathy
because there is nothing to be sympathetic about; it is really the
great joy of my life but only in its simplicity it delivers the mes-
sage.

As most of you know, I have a 6-year-old Downs child. Sonny,
thanks to the state of the art of education, Sunny started going to
school when he was about 3 or 4 months old thanks to the early
intervention programs that came by way of the Federal Govern-
ment getting in there an allotting a few funds to do what the
States and the local communities could not do vis-a-vis the retard-
ed, just a few million dollars nationwide of Federal funds for early
intervention.

And so Sonny started his schooling at 3 months of age. Now,
aside from the fact he is full of beans and cute and all the rest of
that stuff, which is nice, it is also true you are not going to have to
take care of Sonny. You are not going to take care of him. He is
going to be an adult and he is going to be out on those streets and
he is going to be doing his thing just like all the rest of you because
of the few dollars that you spend now.

Now, that is the example in its very simplest terms. But I think
maybe it might have all of us starting to feel good about what it is
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that we have invested in each other rather than telling the story of
how we have thrown our money away, what we have invested. And
the Nation today is what it is not as a reflection of things but of
the flesh and blood that represents that investment.

Thank you very much. [Applause.]
We have one more panel and anybody desiring to make their

own comments will certainly have time to do so. For the next panel
I would just like to introduce those who are doing the signing,
Mary Hoffmeister and Valeda Samuelson. I thank them for being
with us this morning. [Applause.]

Our final panel of scheduled witnesses again are students attend-
ing public and private colleges and universities in Connecticut. We
have with us Kurt Stiles of Mitchell College; Natalie Smith of
Southern Connecticut; Andrea, good to have you with us; Andrea
Chesky of Northwestern Connecticut Community College; and,
Brian Grzelkowski of Wesleyan University. It is a pleasure to have
all of you. Mr. Stiles, why do you not lead off.

STATEMENTS OF KURT E. STILES, MITCHELL COLLEGE; NATALIE
SMITH, SOUTHERN CONNECTICUT STATE UNIVERSITY; ANDREA
CHESKY, NORTHWESTERN CONNECTICUT COMMUNITY COL-
LEGE; AND BRIAN GRZELKOWKSI, WESLEYAN UNIVERSITY

Mr. STILES. Thank you, Senator Weicker and ladies and gentle-
men. I hope I do not repeat too much; there has already been a lot
said, but we are going to give it our best shot here.

I am pleased to have the opportunity to speak here today about
the proposed cuts in student financial aid. My name is Kurt Stiles.
I am a second year student in the business administration program
at Mitchell College in New London.

Three years ago it was beyond my expectations to have a college
degree. The period in my late teens was not an easy time. I fin-
ished high school at night and worked as a cook in the day. This
was necessitated by the fact that my parents were disabled and
later passed away.

At the conclusion of the alternate education program I was hon-
ored to receive the most likely to succeed award. I began to believe
in myself. At work I was promoted into a management position,
but before long I found work very boring, stale, and the future was
looking quite bleak. A counselor then hinted to mb about bettering
myself and encouraged me to look into the possibility of how I
might go to college with the help of student financial aid.

I enrolled in Mitchell in the fall of 1983. A whole new world has
opened up to me. This year I am President of the student govern-
ment and a resident dorm assistant. College has put meaning and
adventure into my life that was otherwise bleak.

Mitchell College is a 2 year, private institution with a full time
enrollment of about 500 people. Approximately 70 percent of these
students receive financial aid. The annual cost of this school is
$9,500. The proposed cutbacks would have a devastating effect on
this school. I believe that the Reagan proposals would ignite a
chain reaction in the field of higher education.

Many students would be forced to foresake education in the pri-
vate sector and seek out-of-State schools. This would create shut-
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downs and unemploymeht in one area and an overflow in the
other. Then, of course, there would be a large segment of students
that would not be able 6" go to school at all.

In my own case I deiiend on the Federal Government for 80 per-
cent of the funding that I receive. I have acquired a guaranteed
student loan, a national direct student loan, a Pell grant, and am
extensively involved in the College Work-Study Program. The
other type of aid from which I benefit is the State grant for inde-
pendent colleges.

Under the proposed cutbacks, for example, I would be eligible for
only $4,000 in Federal aid if my adjusted gross income was under
$8,000. I believe that is hovering around poverty level, if I may say
so. This translates into the fact that I would probably be unable to
pursue my education in the private sector, which is my preference.
As it now stands, the Federal Government expects the independent
student to contribute a major portion of his income to his college
tuition. The independent student has been unfairly discriminated
against by these proposed Federal cuts.

The new budget proposal has provisions for families with adjust-
ed gross incomes of $25,000; it has provisions for families with ad-
justed gross incomes of $32,500. But there are no provisions or
brackets for myself, the independent student or many other inde-
pendent students that are with me.

There is no motivating factor for the independent student to
earn money toward his college expenses because he will be severely
penalized for doing so. He might earn up to $8,000 on his own, but,
for example, like myself, would be eligible for less and less if I earn
more.

A cutback in Federal student aid programs as extensive as that
proposed is ludicrous and curbs an investment, an investment in
the American people. The economy is focused toward highly techni-
cal and advanced society with a great need for the educated people.

Who is going to perpetuate our society into an era of even great-
er technology and advancement? Certainly not those with a 12th
grade education. President Reagan and Secretary of Education Mr.
Bennett both reaped the benefits of higher education. Members of
Congress and the Senate, I believe, also had an opportunity to go to
college. Education, in my eyes, is one of the cornerstones of this de-
mocracy which was founded on the premise that all men were cre-
ated equal, if you will.

These proposed cutbacks will severely restrict the chance for
children of families of the middle and lower income brackets as
well as independent students like myself, which are not part of any
families. To educate only the upper class would sacrifice over 200
years of progress in this country.

Finally, if it were not for higher education I would not have de-
veloped into a leader and moved the mountains that have chal-
lenged me. All in all, I would like to say that if the Government
continues to invest in me and other independent students, then I
can continue my education as well as them and become a major at-
tribute in today's society. Thank you very much.

Senator WEICKER. Thank you very much.
[Applause.]
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Senator WEICKER. Natalie Smith of Southern Connecticut. Nat-
alie.

Ms. SMITH. Thank you, Senator Weicker. My name is Natalie
Lynn Smith. In 1984 I graduated from Southern Connecticut State
University in New Haven with a bachelor's degree in special edu-
cation. I am now back at Southern as a graduate student working
on my master's degree in special education.

Although I am honored to be talking to you today, I wish the
reason for my being here were less frightening to the thousands of
Southern students I represent. During my years at Southern I re-
ceived various forms of Federal financial aid, including Pell grants,
guaranteed student loans and work-study.

Because I received absolutely no assistance from my family I am
completely and totally dependent on financial aid and whatever
employment I can find. As an undergraduate I held as many as
three jobs at one time to help make ends meet. Without financial
aid I would not have been able to attend school, I would never have
earned my degree, and I would not be working today toward my
goal of teaching emotionally disturbed adolescents.

I know from personal experience that the Reagan administra-
tion's proposed financial aid cutbacks will have a devastating effect
on students at Southern. Right now there are approximately 3,000
students receiving financial aid at Southern. If the financial aid
cutbacks go through 45 percent of these students or 1,400 people
will stand to lose their financial aid, 1,000 will lose their guarca-
teed student loans and the other 400 their grants and work-study
positions.

Many of them will be forced to drop out of school completely or
at best to severely curtail their educations. And I am talking about
thousands of students from all over the Statn, people who would
have no choice but to enter the job market and end up raising the
unskilled unemployment rate dramatically.

Yet compared with many private schools Southern is considered
a low cost institution. Connecticut residents pay a total of approxi-
mately $4,700 for tuition, room and board, and fees. Educated
people are this country's greatest resource. They should not be sac-
rificed for the sake of a balanced budget.

Once again the Reagan administration is aiming its cutbacks at
the middle class. Under this plan families with incomes above
$25,000 will be ineligible for either grants or work-study funding.
Families with incomes above $32,500 will be ineligible for guaran-
teed student loans. And despite what William J. Bennett, the
newly appointed Secretary of Education, said in his first press con-
ference, the Reagan administration's cutbacks will not mean, "a
stereo divestiture, an automobile divestiture, or a 3 weeks at the
beach divestiture."

Instead, those cutbacks will mean that hundreds of thousands of
students across the country will lose access to the education that
they deserve. The fact is America's middle class is being forced to
offer up its children's futures to reduce the Federal deficit.

We all realize that the deficit is dangerously large and must be
reduced, but as President Michael Adante of Southern said in the
recent letter to President Reagan, to reduce the deficit at the ex-
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pense of education would "turn the Nation's priorities upside
down."

And, finally, it is interesting and ironic to note that in April 1983
President Reagan's National Commission on Excellence in Educa-
tion published a report called A Nation at Risk: The Imperative for
Educational Reform. According to the authors of that report Amer-
ica's educational foundations are "being eroded by a rising tide of
mediocrity that threatens our very future as a nation and as a
people."

Now, just 2 years later, the Reagan administration is proposing
cutbacks in student financial aid that will further erode our educa-
tional system by prohibiting many people from continuing their
educations and becoming the kind of quality educators that the
commission called for.

History shows that the best investment this country can make is
in its youth who will one day be our leaders. If we abandon them
we are in effect abandoning the foundations upon which this coun-
try was built. Thank you.

Senator WEICKER. Thank you, Natalie. That was a very eloquent
statement. [Applause.]

Andrea Chesky of Northwestern Connecticut Community Col-
lege.

Ms. CHESKY. Thank you for inviting me, Mr. Weicker. As I sit
and listen I realize that I am not young and I am not elderly. I am
not disabled and I am not rich or poor. But in 1959 when I graduat-
ed from high school they did not have the aid that they do today to
help me continue my education. And so I am a freshman and part
time student at Northwestern Connecticut Community College in
Winsted, CT. I hope to graduate in 2 years with an associate degree
in human services. I am on the dean's list and able to attend col-
lege because of the Pell grant and student loan programs.

We are a middle-income family. I also have two daughters at-
tending Northwestern because of the Pell grant and student loan.
My oldest daugbter will graduate in May with an associate's degree
in human services. My youngest daughter is a freshman in the fine
arts program. I would like to stay in school.

I presently work 40 hours a week. I am able to take two evening
courses a semester. If the funding for the Pell grants and student
loans is cut according to the proposals I will not be able to do so. If
I continue to take courses at my present rate I should be abb.. to
receive my associate's in 2 years. Without the Pell grants and stu-
dent loans I will be unable to continue. I am 43 years old; time is
very important to me.

Compared to other colleges, the direct cost of attending a commu-
nity college is minimal. The $655 I have received over the past 2
years has enabled me to work toward my goal of becoming a spe-
cial education teacher. As I have stated before, both my daughters
have attended Northwestern with money from the Pell grants, col-
lege work-study, guaranteed student loans.

With the new proposals no one in my family will be eligible for
any of these, and education for me, my children, and thousands of
other students will be denied. Thank you very much for listening
to me. [Applause.]
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Senator WEICKER. Andrea, thank you very much, and let me say
I got caught in the generalization business in the sense of attrib-
uting the educational process mainly to the young. Nobody appreci-
ates more than I doand I might add more so than any of the
other educational institutions of the State, the community college
where so many people finally have the opportunity to get the edu-
cation, just as you have indicated, that they could not get by virtue
of the lack of programs to assist them. And if you ever want to
have an inspiration, I think at least once or twice a year I do
attend the graduations of some community colleges in Connecticut.

And when those men and women mount the platform, even to 85
years of age and down, it is inspiring because indeed they have
come there to gain their heart's desire and something that they
sacrificed many years earlier and many of them for their children
so that their children could have the opportunity.

So please excuse my generalization, and I think it is great that
you are here to go ahead and testify before us.

Our last witness will be Brian Grzelkowski of Wesleyan Universi-
ty.

Mr. GRZELKOWSKI. Thank you, Senator Weicker. My name is
Brian Grzelkowski, and as a student at Wesleyan, I too would like
to express my concern over what I consider the Reagan administra-
tion's misguided and ill conceived proposals for cutting the Federal
financial aid program. From a personal standpoint, because I am a
junior, these proposed cuts will not directly affect my undergradu-
ate education.

However, they could prove disastrous for my future plans to
attend graduate school. At any rate, my personal circumstances do
provide an excellent representative case of the potentially destruc-
tive nature of these cuts. Wesleyan is a private, liberal arts college
whose expenses will total well over $15,500 next year.

I currently receive every form of Federal financial aid available
to out of State undergraduate students; that is the Pell grant,
SEOG, college work-study, and GSL as well as NDSL loans, in all
totaling $7,250. Wesleyan provides an additional $3,515 to meet my
total established financial need of $10,615. Obviously, I have exten-
sive financial need.

In fact, my Federal student aid index is the lowest possible or
zero. Thus I qualify for the maximum grant in both the Pell and
SEOG programs.

The significance of the administration's proposed qualificational
cap of $32,500 for all of the above aid programs becomes readily ap-
parent when one considers the fact that my parents' combined
family income is about $45,000. However, my parents are divorced.
My father has remarried and thus has an additional two depend-
ents, and I am the legal dependent of a mother who, although she
is making roughly $20,000 now, incurred tremendous debts the pre-
vious 3 years during which she was unemployed.

I also have a sister currently attending Cornell University, an-
other $15,000-plus institution. Yet if these proposals were to pass
none of these extraneous factors would be considered and I would
cease to qualify for any of the Federal financial aid funds that I am
currently receiving.
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To look at this from a different perspective, my sister's and my
combined educational expenses of over $30,000 nearly equal the
proposed income cap and represent a full three-fourths of my fami-
ly's gross income. Fortunately for me, Wesleyan currently main-
tains a policy of guaranteeing student financial need.

Yet under the current budgetary proposals 702 of Wesleyan's
1,329 financial aid students, or 54.9 percent, would cease to qualify
for Federal financial aid. These figures represent a revenue loss of
$615,000 in grant money alone which must be made up through
university resources.

Quite clearly, even highly endowed institutions like Wesleyan
cannot indefinitely bear the financial burdens that filling the
vacuum left by lost Federal funds will entail. The most immediate
result of such pressures would be that qualified students would not
be admitted simply because of financial need.

Since Wesleyan is one of the most highly endowed institutions in
the country these cuts will have both far reaching and drastic ef-
fects throughout the entire educational system. However, there are
broader consequences I see arising from such a budgetary policy
that I fear most.

Quite simply, I foresee an increase in socioeconomic inequality
throughout not only the country's educational institutions but also
the society as a whole. Educational experiences and opportunities
satisfying a wide range of personal abilities and needs will become
the luxury of only those who can afford them.

Educational programs were cut by 20 percent during President
Reagan's first term and now an additional 15-percent cut is being
proposed. Yet this country cah have no greater resource than an
educated citizenry. Therefore, I find it incomprehensible that it is
these already depleted programs which are to again suffer under
the pale of the budgetary axe.

What does seem clear to me is that what has been abandoned is
the principle on which Federal financial aid programs were estab-
lished, that each individual should be able to pursue an education
to a level commensurate with their abilities regardless of their fi-
nancial need or status.

Is this country willing to withdraw this commitment? It is
always a danger to take financial aid for granted, yet there is cer-
tainly no such thing as a free lunch in higher education today. I
will graduate from Wesleyan with over $10,000 debt. Others will
have more. It is important to realize that financial aid students do
suffer hardships. They must work untold hours both during school
and the summer to help pay for their education and thus must also
forego further educational experiences such as summer school and
internships during breaks, all because of the dominant necessity to
earn money. These pressures cannot be ignored.

Senator Weicker, I face you today from the perspective that I,
like so many other students, would not be in school if it were not
for the Federal financial aid that I receive. Patriotic appeals for
communal sacrifices do provide a powerful stimulus for disregard-
ing how imperiled this system has already become. However, the
future of our democratic society is dependent upon an educated,
participating adult population. I do hope you and your fellow Mem-
bers in Congress will do their utmost to prevent the further dese-
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cration of our educational system, one of our most important na-
tional resources. Obtaining higher education must not become the
privilege of only the rich. [Applause.]

Senator WEICKER. I want to thank all of you for your testimony. I
am not going to ask questions, because I have other students that
are here that were not scheduled to testify, and I want to give each
one just a few minutes to express themselves.

But I just want to say to you that from a legislator's point of
view you have made some of the tough moments in the past, and
from those of us that take my point of view you make it worth-
while to listen to your testimony. And I want to tell you how ap-
preciative I am for the quality of your words and your thoughts.
Thank you very much.

Is Bob Egan of the Connecticut Education Association here?
John Osterowski of the Central Connecticut State University,

the student senate president. Is John here? John, why don't you
come up. I am going to call five of you up here at the same time,
and if we could have a few minutes from each of you. David Fon-
taine of Trinity College. Is David here? Carol Conerly of North
Central Community College. Alicia Czajka. And I believe those are
all the students aside from the high school students.

OK. If you would be good enough just so that we can accommo-
date everybody to keep your comments to 2 or 3 minutes. Why do
we not start right down the line. Alicia, why do you not start.

STATEMENT OF ALICIA CZAJKA, EASTERN CONNECTICUT
UNIVERSITY

Ms. CZAJKA. My name is Alicia Czajka. I am a freshman at East-
ern Connecticut University, and I only want to address an issue
that no one seemed to have mentioned, the changing of the inde-
pendent status to the age of 22. I am 21 years old and I have been
supporting myser since I was 18 years old. I wanted to know why,
if that proposal were not there, that means that I would be more
independent when I was 22 than I am right now. I will still be
paying the same bills next year, and I really do not understand
that part of the proposal.

But if the age changes to 22, then people would have to wait to
go to college until they are 22. I did wait until I was 21 because
when I got out of high school I worked for 2 years and raised sub-
stantial money in order to put myself through. With financial aid I
can make it just barely.

If I had to have waited until I was 22 in order to have gone to
school that would have been 4 years I would have wasted of poten-
tial. I would have to wait 4 more years to get out of college. I have
a cum of 3.9, and it is just because I work really hard, and it means
more to me.

But if I had to wait another year I do not think I would have
gone back. It just would have been too long. Four years out of
school is too long to wait. That is all I have to say.

Senator WEICKER. Thank you very, very much. Thank you for
bringing that to our attention.

Carol Conerly.
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STATEMENT OF CAROL CONERLY, NORTHWESTERN
CONNECTICUT COMMUNITY COLLEGE

Ms. CONERLY. First, I would like to invite you to commencement
ceremonies at Northwestern Connecticut Community College May
25, 1985. I am going to be graduating there.

Senator WEICKER. Have I been there before?
Ms. CONERLY. I do not know. I have only been there 3 years and I

have not seen you.
Senator WEICKER. You and I will talk about that. [Laughter.]
Go right ahead.
Ms. CONERLY. First let me tell you that I am a mother of five, all

adults, one learning disabled child 28 years old, who went to fight
the Texas Legislature for educational pr:Jcesses for that young lady
because in 1963 there were no provisions for the learning disabled.
I have four sons who graduated from college and now it is my turn.
And I am totally independent and I do not have anything to fall
back on, no home, nothing.

I intend to be a practicing attorney in administrative and consti-
tutional law for the deaf in the State of Connecticut by the time I
am 59 years old, and I am going to do it. And I am here to talk to
you today to ask you to please inform the President that he became
President at 69. I should have the right to become a judge at that
same age. [Applause.]

There is one other aspect of this financial aid package thing that
I would like to discuss with you, and that involves financial aid
that does go to the handicapped in the postsecondary institutions.
And, Senator Weicker, is this going to be affected? We have deaf
students who need financial aid in order to have an education.

And if this is going to affect them, then we are affecting a part of
our population that deserve and can be functioning, first-class citi-
zens in our country. And so my concern is not only for myself be-
cause if I lose aid I will not get to go back to school. That is it. My
dream is going to be gone.

But I am a plucky lady; I am going to fight for what I believe in.
But handicapped people need to be considered in this whole situa-
tion also because they will not be able to fight back, Senator
Weicker. Thank you very much.

Senator WEICKER. Thank you, Carol. [Applause.]
David Fontaine.

STATEMENT OF DAVID FONTAINE, TRINITY COLLEGE

Mr. FONTAINE. My name is David Fontaine. I am a resident of
Bristol, CT, and I am currently in my junior year at Trinity Col-
lege where I am a double major in economics and American stud-
ies. I had a prepared statement, but seeing that we have some time
constraints I will try and edit through some of these things.

My basic argument with the proposed Federal cutbacks is that
they are too arbitrary in nature in that gross income statistics are
a poor indication and a poor measure of a family's total financial
circumstances. As many others have eloquently stated earlier
today, such things as debt and multiple-children families also must
enter into the evaluation process.
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My other basic argument is very similar to that which was used
for the maintenance of the Social Security system, and that is that
the very existence of Federal student aid programs has led many
individuals to make long-term decisions which they would not have
made in the absence of these very same programs.

The expectation that student loans would be available has en-
tered into the long-term planning of many families and students.
To change the rules in the middle of the game seems to be quite
unethical as well as unjust. Therefore, if changes in student aid are
to be considered at any time they should be structured in such a
way as to allow families enough time to prepare alternative financ-
ing arrangements.

Perhaps those already receiving aid and those who are close to
college age at the time that changes are implemented should be
grandfathered in under the old existing system. It would be exceed-
ingly naive to believe that all those who are receiving aid now and
who would be adversely affected by the proposed changes could im-
mediately come up with the funds that would be necessary to com-
pensate for the losses in aid.

Savings and consumption behavior are not readily amenable to
immediate changes in circumstances. This is due to the fact both
are very often contingent upon past decisions and carry over for a
long period of time. Therefore, an adjustment period must be struc-
tured into any program that would bring about changes in student
aid.

Education, in my opinion, is a resource which America cannot
afford to waste. Cuts in student aid are a Band-Aid approach to
solving the deficit problem. In the short run, Government may save
money, but the probability of efficiency problems surfacing in the
long run is extremely high.

In order to remain competitive in the international marketplace,
America must maintain the highest educational standards. The
education which I am receiving at Trinity College and the aid
which I have received have combined to provide me with the pros-
pect of a bright future. My earning power has been significantly in-
creased, and over time I will more than repay the investment
which the Government has made in me.

The future of America, in my opinion, lies in education and to
place limits on the availability of education is to place limits on the
future of America. [Applause.]

Senator WEICKER. Thank you, David. John Osterowski of Central
Connecticut, student senate president.

STATEMENT OF JOHN OSTEROWSKI, CENTRAL CONNECTICUT
STATE UNIVERSITY

Mr. OSTEROWSKI. Senator Weicker, members of the Senate Sub-
committee on Education, my name is John Osterowski and I am
president of the student government association at Central Con-
necticut State University. I am a senior and I am majoring in in-
dustrial marketing.

Speaking on behalf of 15,000 undergraduate students attending
Central Connecticut State, I would like to concentrate my thoughts
on three specific areas of concern: one, the $32,500 income cap; two,
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the declaration of students as independents; and, three, the student
and family debt incurred because of education.

First and foremost of concern to the students is the combined
family income of $32,500 as a cutoff for student loan eligibility. In
my opinion, the figure of $32,500 is unrealistic because it does not
take into consideration more than one child in school or any other
extenuating circumstances that may arise in the family.

Therefore, this area of the proposal is in great need of review.
My peers and I would support a full needs test for any student ap-
plying for financial aid or student loans instead of the income cap.
This would subject all students who apply for these loans to a de-
termination of eligibility to receive them.

In my opinion, this would help eliminate some of the immediate
concerns and abuses associated with this program.

As students, we are fully aware that there should and must be
changes in this unrealistic loan program proposal. The setting of
the $32,500 cap is a demonstration of Government taking the easy
way out. This is an area that must be studied a great deal more.

The second area which I would like to discuss is the issue of the
independent or self-supporting student. There is a serious concern
about abuses in this area by students claiming to be independent,
but who are not. I support the administration's proposal that deals
with the independent student's status and which aims to correct
come of the existing fraud.

Abuses could be more effectively controlled and true independ-
ence verified if students under the age of 22 were classified as de-
pendent.

The third topic I would like to cover this morning is the concern
of the student debt. Although the area is not addressed in any pro-
posals, because of its importance I would like to take a moment to
address it right now. At present students are leaving college with a
very heavy debt burden. I have a friend who will be graduating in
May and he will owe $10,000. His girlfriend will owe approximately
$10,000 as well. If they marry, they will be paying $242.66 per
month for the next 10 years. This is a heavy burden for young
people to be starting off their lives with and a tremendous concern
for society in the years ahead.

Students in debt will be unable to buy cars, homes, or other com-
modities that will support the economy. Heavy debt may prohibit
them from saving for their own children's education. I hope that
the Government and the financial aid and student loan associa-
tions will develop programs to help educate students in this area.

In conclusion, Senator, I would like to just ask that you take
some of my comments back to Washington to your colleagues and
hopefully support some of the things I have just mentioned.

Thank you for the opportunity to present my testimony.
Senator WEICKER. Thank you very much, John. [Applause.]

STATEMENT OF JENNIFER RIENKS, UNIVERSITY OF
CONNECTICUT

Ms. RIENKS. Good morning, Senator. My name is Jennifer Rienks
and I am a representative of the undergraduate student govern-
ment at the University of Connecticut. Since Reagan's proposed
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budget cuts in higher education were announced, we have been
working with student leaders throughout the State organizing op-
position to these cuts. Some of our academic workloads have to
compete with our desire to voice our opposition against these cuts.
This is the most important issue facing students since the Vietnam
war, and it is an issue that demands our response. As you can see
by the students here today we are not going to take this lying
down. [Applause.]

We encourage you and our other representatives in Washington
to take this threat to our future away from us and vote down these
unjust budget cuts. President Reagan is continually citing the
abuses in the loan program and I put forth that as we have seen
General Dynamics has abused its defense contracts. Perhaps we
should cut back on the defense budget as well. [Applause.]

Thank you.
Senator WEICKER. Thank you very much. Thank all of you for

your testimony.
The next panel will consist of Dr. Ryan, the president of St.

Joseph College. Dr. Ryan, nice to have you here. Louise Simmons,
UCONN Urban Semester Program. George Lang the president of
the Connecticut Conference of the American Association of Univer-
sity Professors. And then lastly we have two students from Canton
High School, Vincent Thomas and Randy Feigert. Is that correct?
Are they here? Not here.

All right. We have before us three panelists. Dr. Ryan, why don't
you lead off.

STATEMENT OF DR. RYAN, PRESIDENT, ST. JOSEPH COLLEGE

Dr. RYAN. I speak as the newest member of the family of Con-
necticut college and university presidents, as president of the only
4-year women's college in Connecticut and of the institution with
the lowest loan default rate in the Northeast. My testimony will be
brief and designed to do four things: First, to support the testimony
you have already heard so splendidly today; second, to relieve your
staff of whatever embarrassment it may have for fielding an all
male panel of presidents; third, to assure you that colleges and uni-
versities are excellent examples of cost control. My own institution
has instituted fixed rate tuition guaranteeing incoming freshmen
the same tuition rate for 4 years. And, fourth, to extend the re-
marks of Presidents DiBiaggio and Feldman.

We should not be here testifying about cuts in Federal aid, but in
support of increases. And why? Because the demographic losses in
the Northeast indicate that within 10 years we will have approxi-
mately one-half of the current talent pool from which to draw ag-
gressive middle managers for business and industry, education, and
health care delivery and public service.

We simply must maximize the potential, whatever that may be,
of every citizen.

Senator, I really cannot accept the necessity for the justifications
we have heard and are continuing to hear today. If I spent $1 mil-
lion per day from the birth of Christ to the present I would not
have spent what we are being asked to believe the Pentagon can
efficiently spend during the next 10 years.
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In this context, I cannot accept that the Congress will allow the
Republic to diminish the quality of its future by diminishing any
investment in education. Thank you so much, Senator, for hearing
us. [Applause.]

Senator WEICKER. Let me, first of all, address the matter of the
chauvinism on the panel. If a mistake was made, I want you to talk
to the staff director. That is the person in charge of my subcommit-
tee. The staff director is Jane West right back here.

But I do apologize and I am glad that you did testify. Let me
comment, again reemphasizing what I alluded to before and I give
these facts and these statistics and they are correct. And all the
testimony we have heard today is correct. I suppose what I find dif-
ficult to accept is that in light of those facts and in light of the way
the American people traditionally have always felt toward their
children, living for their children, making these investments. How
in God's name does this Nation permit, not just on this score, but
has now for the last several years one group of Americans after an-
other, to be cut out of their share of the opportunities of this
Nation? How has this Nation allowed this to happen? I repeat, it
has to come home: You people are the Government. We have al-
lowed ourselves to get in the business of those people in Washing-
ton, those people in Hartford. If you do not speak, it is going to
happen.

I will put it in a light vein for you. I love addressing an audience
of voters here in the State of Connecticut and I love to generalize
about my profession. And they say, well, all you politicians are
inept. All politicians are corrupt. All politicians are sex maniacs
and right on down the list.

You know what I say? I say, well, that is interesting because this
is a representative democracy, is it not? [Laughter.]

Well, you know what you are and I know what I am. And what
we see happening in so far as the budget is concerned is totally
contradictory to what we are. And, Dr. Ryan, I appreciate you
coming up here and I just hope that you will speak up. And I am
not talking about Dr. Ryan. She did; she is here; she spoke up; but
that everybody will speak up. You have the facts on your side.
Sometimes we speak up and we do not know what we are talking
about. You have the facts on your side. You have the ideals on
your side.

There is no reason why we should not prevail, but right now, as I
have said in many instances, silence is the greatest ally of this
inane policy that is being presented to the American people. And if
you do not speak up now, I might add, it will get worse, not better.

The next witness is Louise Simmons of the University of Con-
necticut Urban Semester Program.

STATEMENT OF LOUISE SIMMONS, UNIVERSITY OF
CONNECTICUT

Ms. SIMMoNs. Thank you, Senator Weicker. I direct the Universi-
ty of Connecticut Urban Semester Program which is a program
which brings students from Storrs into Hartford to do work intern-
ships and study on urban issues.

64



60

I am going to be very brief because I do not think anybody can
say more than what has been said already by the students and the
university and college presidents. But I do find it ironic that yester-
day the House voted to fund the MX missile system and that today
we are sitting here struggling to maintain our student loan pro-
grams. [Applause.]

That we will fund weapons systems that render destruction, that
many argue are obsolete before they are produced, that represent
one of the biggest wastes of money in history; we will fund the Con-
tras in Nicaragua; we will constructively engage with the most hid-
eous regime in South Africa. And yet we are pul,itive with our own
students, with our own middle and lower middle income students
in our own country.

And it is appalling to me that the Secretary of Education is one
of the leaders of this assault. He is using the techniques that I feel
have been used against welfare recipients. He is employing the
same techniques against students. He is trying to conjure up dis-
torted images of cheaters and people taking advantage of this
system. Well, I think it has been stated earlier that the cost of a
Sony Walkman is really trivial compared to $7,000 to $10,000 tui-
tion bills.

Even if a student getting a student loan bought a Sony Walk-
man, it is a very trivial amount compared to the cost of college
education today.

I just want to say that I have been doing this job for 5 years and
I have watched a lot of students come from Storrs into Hartford.
Many of my students have been from the Hartford area and have
come back to try to provide some service to their community. And I
am astounded to watch the way that they have to hustle two and
three part-time jobs. Sometimes they are work-study. Sometimes
they are outside of the university setting, but the amount of hus-
tling that these students have to do to balance their own check-
books and their own education is astounding to me and I think it is
a testament to the fact that students will get an education.

So I just want to end on that note, and I think what we need to
do is really reverse our priorities. Thank you very much. [Ap-
plause.]

Senator WEICKER. We thank you very much. The final witness on
this panel is George Lang, the president of the Connecticut Confer-
ence of the AAUP.

STATEMENT OF GEORGE LANG, PRESIDENT, CONNECTICUT CON-
FERENCE, AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF UNIVERSITY PROFES-
SORS

Mr. LANG. Thank you, Senator. I am the chair of the department
of mathematics and computer science at Fairfield University. I am
the president of the Connecticut Conference of the American Asso-
ciation of University Professors.

In the late sixties we talked about tripartite, administration, fac-
ulties, and students. The AAUP represents the faculty third of the
university community. You have heard testimony from the presi-
dents of our institutions about the threat to the financial stability
of our colleges that the proposed reductions present. You have also
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heard from students and from parents attesting to the hardship
which me/1y middle-class families will face trying to provide an
education for their offspring. Although these concerns should be
enough for Congress to continue or increase its support for higher
education, I feel we should address the educational implications of
the proposed measures.

Our country and Connecticut in particular present our young
people with a variety of higher education opportunity ranging from
large public institutions offering a number of majors to small liber-
al arts and special purpose institutions.

In recent years many of the private institutions have been able
to open their doors to able students independent of those students'
financial status. The selection of a school could be done on the
basis of a good fit between the applicant's academic ability and the
demands of the school, between the student's interests and the in-
stitution's curriculum. Students could pursue their studies with
peers from a large cross section of America's social and economic
groups.

This diversity provides a setting in which the broadening effects
of an education can best be carried out. Without access to a reason-
able financial aid package our private institutions will be populat-
ed solely by the children of the wealthy, ironically depriving them
of some of the exposure they need for their own education.

As these cuts threaten the financial state of our colleges, we will
lack diversity not only in our student body but also on our faculty.
It is no secret that faculty salaries area major portion of any col-
lege's budget. The minds of those men and women constitute our
only production tool.

In recent years people like myself could join faculties without in-
dependent wealth and at least with a working spouse earn enough
to support a family. If there is a squeeze on our institution's budget
it will surely hit faculty salaries. The implications for the quality
of education, especially in a State like Connecticut, which is seek-
ing to maintain a leading position in high technology areas, will be
disastrous.

I have the chore of hiring faculty to staff a program in computer
science. The qualify of our technically educated graduates will
depend on the quality of our technical faculty. And that in turn
will depend upon our ability to attract engineers and scientists. We
have already witnessed a flight from mathematics departments in
many of our high schools. And declining resources will cause the
same flight from our colleges at a time when we need to increase
both quantity and quality in these areas.

The quality of our faculty is threatened also by the proposed cuts
to graduate fellowship programs. The graduate programs in our
country are providing the future faculties. I myself attended
Purdue University under a National Science Foundation grant.
Money went into that program in response to Sputnik. I hope we
do not need another national emergency to fund higher education.

Finally, faculty members as a group are affected in yet another
way. Student loans are one of the few government programs that
provide aid directly to middle-class families. One of our interests in
that large group of Americans is the fat.: that we are in it. While
our professional training might make In one of the best educated
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occupational groups, our income places us squarely in the middle
class.

It will be some years before I know whether my own son and
daughter should be seeking their education at Fairfield, a commu-
nity college, or at Yale. I do know I want them to make that deci-
sion based on their academic ability and their goals, not on the
state of my bank book. Without student aid and loans it seems un-
likely that I could afford to give my children an open choice of col-
leges even though I consider their education my main financial pri-
ority beyond providing the basics of life.

We as faculty have devoted our careers to learning and teaching
and now could run the risk of seeing our own children deprived of
the opportunity to optimize their pursuit of learning.

The diversity of students within our institutions, the diversity of
institutions available to our students, the ability of our institution
to attract good faculty depends on the continued willingness of the
Congress to make access to higher education available to all our
young men and women.

Our continued leadership both socially and technically will
depend on our investment in the education of the next generation
of Americans. Thank you very much, Senator.

[Applause.]
[Additional material supplied for the record follows:]
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STATEMENT OF

BETTY L. TIANTI, SECRETARY-TREASURER

CONNECTICUT AFL-CIO.

AT THE HEARING HELD BY

SENATOR LOWELL P. WEICKER

MARCH 29, 1985

UNIVERSITY OF HARTFORD

HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT

THE AFL-CIO BELIEVES THAT THE BUDGET PROPOSALS OF PRESIDENT

REAGAN FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 1985 WOULD INFLICT CONSIDERABLE SUFFERING

AND HARDSHIP NOT ONLY ON THE POOR, BUT ON THE AVERAGE WORKING FAMILY

IN CONNECTICUT.

WE URGE OUR CONGRESSIONAL REPRESENTATIVES TO OPPOSE ALL OF THE

CUTS IN DOMESTIC PROGRAMS, AS WELL AS THE OUTRIGHT ELIMINATION OF

SOME OF THEM.

WE ARE PARTICULARLY CONCERNED, FOR THE PURPOSE OF THIS HEARING,

WITH THE PRESIDENT'S PROPOSALS TO CUT FEDERAL AID TO EDUCATION. THE

AMERICAN LABOR MOVEMENT HAS, FOR OVER 150 YEARS, FOUGHT FOR A PUBLIC

EDUCATION SYSTEM WHICH WOULD PERMIT SONS AND DAUGHTERS OF WORKING

PEOPLE TO OBTAIN THE BENEFITS OF PUBLIC PRIMARY, SECONDARY AND POST-

SECONDARY EDUCATION.

THE ENORMOUS INCREASE IN THE COST OF A COLLEGE EDUCATION, NOT

ONLY IN THE PRIVATE SECTOR, BUT IN MANY OF THE PUBLIC INSTITUTIONS,

LIKE THE UNIVERSITY OF CONNECTICUT AND THE STATE UNIVERSITIES, HAS

PUT THESE INSTITUTIONS OUT OF REACH OF THE AVERAGE WORKING FAMILY.

WE NEED ONLY LOOK AT THE LATEST FIGURES FOR EARNINGS OF
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2.

CONNECTICUT FACTORY WORKERS AND THE COST OF THE STUDENTS ATTENDING

THE UNIVERSITY OF CONNECTICUT AT STORRS TO SEE THE DIFFICULTY MOST

CHILDREN OF WORKING FAMILIES FACE IN OBTAINING ACCESS TO THIS LEVEL

OF HIGHER EDUCATION.

THE LATEST FIGURES FOR THE AVERAGE EARNINGS OF CONNECTICUT

FACTORY WORKERS IS $20,076 PER YEAR. THE COST FOR A STUDENT LIVING

ON CAMPUS AT STORRS RUNS TO $5,700 FOR THE CURRENT YEAR AND WILL BE

APPROXIMATELY $6,200 FOR THE NEXT ACADEMIC YEAR.

IT IS A WELL KNOWN FACT THAT THE AVERAGE FAMILY CANNOT MAINTAIN

ITSELF UNLESS BOTH SPOUSES WORK, OR, IF THERE IS ONLY ONE BREAD

WINNER, HE OR SHE MUST HAVE A SECOND PART-TIME JOB TO MAKE ENDS MEET.

THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR, UNTIL THE CURRENT ADMINISTRATION,

PUBLISHED A SET OF ESTIMATES FOR THE ANNUAL INCOME NEEDED TO SUPPORT

FAMILIES AT DIFFERENT LEVELS OF LIVING STANDARDS.

UNDER THE REAGAN REGIME THIS ESTIMATE WAS DISCONTINUED FOR

ALLEGED REASONS OF ECONOMY. WE CAN, HOWEVER, USE THE LAST FIGURES

PUBLISHED, AND BY APPLYING THE RISE IN LIVING COSTS FOR THE PERIOD

IN BETWEEN, USE THOSE ESTIMATES TO GET A PRETTY GOOD IDEA OF WHAT IS

CURRENTLY REQUIRED FOR A MODEST STANDARD OF LIVING. USING THIS

METHOD, THE ESTIMATE FOR THE INCOME NEEDED FOR A FAMILY OF FOUR IS

TODAY APPROXIMATELY $30,000. THIS MODEST BUDGET IS MORE THAN MODEST:

IN REGARD TO EDUCATION, IT ALLOWS ONLY $100 A YEAR FOR THE ENTIRE

FAMILY.

EVEN THAT BUDGET, HOWEVER, IS NOT OBTAINABLE BY THE AVERAGE

FACTORY WORKER'S FAMILY IN CONNECTICUT UNLESS BOTH SPOUSES WORKS OR

ONE OF THEM HAS A SECOND JOB.
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3.

IF YOU ASSUME THAT BOTH SPOUSES WERE WORKING IN FACTORIES AND

MAKING THE AVERAGE WAGE, THE COMBINED INCOME WOULD BE $40,000.

THIS WOULD PUT THEM ABOVE THE LEVEL NOW PROPOSED BY MR. REAGAN

FOR STUDENT LOANS, WHICH IS $32,500 PER YEAR.

EVEN AT THE CURRENT LEVEL OF STUDENT AID, THE POOR AND MIDDLE

INCOME FAMILIES ARE BEING PRICED OUT OF U. CONN.

THE PERCENTAGE OF STUDENTS AT U. CONN FROM FAMILIES WITH INCOMES

OF $15,000 A YEAR OR LESS HAS DECREASED FROM 13.5 IN 1981 TO 10.8 IN

1983. To REDUCE STUDENT AID WHEN COSTS ARE ESCALATING WILL ONLY

EXACERBATE THIS TREND. A

MR. REAGAN'S PROPOSAL FOR A CEILING ON FAMILY INCOME FOR THE

MANY MIDDLE INCOME FAMIUES AND HIS PROPOSED MAXIMUM OF $4,000 PER

YEAR IN ALL KINDS OF FEDERAL AID IS EVEN MORE DAMAGING TO THE

AVERAGE FAMILY. LIMITING WORK STUDY AND DIRECT GRANTS TO STUDENTS

WITH A FAMILY INCOME OF LESS THAN $25,000 WILL EXCLUDE LOW INCOME

STUDENTS EVEN FROM PUBLIC INSTITUTIONS. THESE POLICIES WILL FORE-

CLOSE THE ABILITY OF SUCH FAMILIES TO PAY THEIR WAY THROUGH AMY

PRIVATE COLLEGE OR UNIVERSITY, AND IT SERIOUSLY LIMITS THE ABILITY OF

ANY FAMILY TO SUPPORT TWO STUDENTS AT THE SAME TIME ATTENDING AN

INSTITUTION LIKE U. CONN.

WE IN CONNECTICUT REALIZE THAT THE STATE HAS NO NATURAL RESOURCES

EXCEPT THE ABILITY OF ITS OWN PEOPLE TO ACQUIRE THE EDUCATION AND

TRAINING NEEDED FOR TODAY'S WORK FORCE.

THE NUMBER OF OPENINGS FOR SKILLED FACTORY WORKERS HAS BEEN

DRASTICALLY CUT AS FOREIGN IMPORTS HAVE SHARPLY REDUCED AND EVEN

ELIMINATED MAJOR SECTIONS OF CONNECTICUT INDUSTRY. IF CONGRESS

ENACTS ANY PROPOSALS LIKE THE REAGAN BUDGET CUTS IN AID TO EDUCATION,
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4.

SIMILAR BARRIERS WILL BE SET UP PREVENTING PEOPLE OF AVERAGE MEANS

FROM OBTAINING ANY KIND OF HIGHER EDUCATION.

WE. THEREFORE. STRONGLY URGE YOU TO EXERT EVFIY MEANS TO DEFEAT

THIS PROPOSAL. BECAUSE OF ITS DESTRUCTIVE NATURr. TO THE INTERESTS

OF THE MAJORITY OF CONNECTICUT RESIDENTS AND THEIR CHILDREN.

opm376AFL-CIO

3/28/85
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STATEMENT BY DR. MILTON MARKOWITZ

ASSOZIATE DEAN FOR STUDENT AFFAIRS

UNIVERSITY OF CONNECTICUT SCHOOL OF MEDICINE

Senator Weicker, my name is Hilton Markowitz. I am a

Professor of Pediatrics and Associate Dean for Student Affairs at

the University of Connecticut School of Medicine in Farmington.

All matters pertaining to financial aid for our 339 students are

handled through our office. We are a State-supported school, and

virtually all of our students are Connecticut residents. Our

current tuition snd fees are $5,200 and living expenses art about

$7,000. So that the cost of a medical education is approximately

$50,000, plus interest on loans.

I can best show you how President Reagan's projected

cutbacks in financial assistance programs will affect Sur

students, by comparing the indebtedness of our current senior

class to what it would be if they were starting over again and

had to complete their 4 years under the budget recommended by the

Administration.

There sre 83 students in our senior class snd all but 7

(92%) have obtained financial aid. By the time they graduate inb

May of this year, they will have an aggregate debt burden of

approximately 2 million doll.rs. This does not include what they

may have borrowed from parents and other outside sources. The

range of indebtedness is several thousand dollars to as high as
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$51,000. It averages out to $26,000 per student. However, by

the time they finish paying off their loans over a 10-year

period, the actual cost per student will be an average of

$33,000.

Now let us assume that this class will enter medical school

in the near future and that they will have to arrange their

finances based on the changes recommended by President Reagan.

Right off, 40 percent will be ineligible for the Title IV

Guaranteed Student Loan Program (GSL). The GSL program is the

backbone of our financial aid package. The remaining 60 percent

will have their annual borrowing limit from GSL reduced from

$5,000 to $4,000 and the accumulative borrowing amount would drop

from $25,000 to $20,000.

The proposals that affect the GSL are the most devastating

of all the many other changes included in President Reagan's

budget. It means that our student body would have to go out and

borrow $800,000 from other sources over the 4-year period. In

the past they would have fallen back on the Title VII HEAL

program. While the HEAL Program is expensive, in its present

form it is extremely important as a loan of last resort for 12

percent of our students. For the older, independent student, it

is often the only way to borrow sufficient funds for medical

school. The budget for the HEAL program is being severely cut

and will almost certainly be phased out. The Reagan

Administration recommends that they borrow this $800,000 from

private banks using the ALAS Program at a rate determined by the

73



69

lender at a maximum of the Treasury Bill rate plus 3 percent.

This is potentially dangerous because there is no predicting how

high the Treasury Bill rates might go.

Let us assume that our students could borrow the $600,000 at

12 percent interest from private banks. Unlike the CSL, this

interest would have to be paid while the student is still in

school. If the student is able to find a lender, which can be a

problem in Connecticut, the student would have to pay, in

addition to the current 1 percent insurance/guarantee fee to the

guarantee agency, an additional 1 percent guarantee fee to the

Federal Government for each new loan. Obviously all of these

changes would add to the total indebtedness.

Now at the end of 4 years under the projected changes, the

aggregate debt of the graduating class would have risen from 2 to

2.5 million dollars, and at the end of the 10 year payout

period, it would amount to over 3 million dollars. The ge

cost for each student would rise from $33,000 to $41,500.

Furthermore, for those students with low financial resources who

would need to borrow up to $40$45,000, their eventual cost could

easily be between $60 and $70,000.

In summary, our medical school relies heavily on seven

programs slated for change in the Administration's FY'86 Budget.

We estimate a loss of nearly $1,000,000 per year in available aid

as a result of these changes. As a relatively young, State

institution, we have minimal funds to draw on to supplement the

high interest dollars students would use in place of this lost
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aid. It is quite possible that, for the first time in the

history of our school, some students would have to drop out. We

see our commitment to provide affordable medical education to

qualified Connecticut students from all economic backgrounds

severely threatened by the proposed changes in student financial

aid. We urge you to vote against the cuts in student aid.
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COMPARISON OF THE INDEBTEDNESS OF THE CLASS OF 1985 AT THE
UNIVERSITY OF CONNECTICUT SCHOOL OF MEDICINE UNDER THE EXISTING FEDERAL PROGRAM
REGULATIONS AND REGULATIONS PROPOSED IN THE ADMINISTRATION'S FY'86 BUDGET1

EXISTING REGULATIONS PROPOSED REGULATIONS

Type of Aid Amount Mount 1 Amount Mount
Borrowed Repaid 1 Borrowed

J

Repaid

2GSL $1,350,000 $1,966,000 $550,000 $ 801,000

3ALAS - - 800,000 1,802,000

4INSTZT. 350,000 514,000 350,000 532,000

TOTAL $1,700,000 $2,480,000 $1,700,000 $3,135,000

I N 76 students

2 GSL - Guaranteed Student Loan - Current Interest Rate - 7-9% (fixed); 10-year
repayment period. Proposed Interest Rate would
be variable - figured here at 8%

3 ALAS - Auxiliary Loan to Assist Students - Interest Rate - 12% with interest
accruing and paid during in-school and deferment period; 10-year
repayment period. (Interest rate currently fixed but would become
variable. There would also be a 1% guarantee fee for each new loan).

4 INSTIT - Aid awarded by the Institution - includes NDSL (5%) HPSL (9%), UNIV
LOANS (9%). All aid figured at 9% under proposed regulations; 10-year
repayment period.

76



Unms,Mcftw.W4
rmiam.m.d.wmm

uncoMf

72

American Association for
Counseling and Development
5999 Stevenson Avenue Alexandna Vagtnra 22304 703/823.9800

Statement on Behalf of the
American Association for Counseling and Development

and the

American School Counselor Association

by

Gail Morris
Counselor

Bethel School District
Bethel, Connecticut

for the
U.S. Senate Labor and Human Resources Committee

Subcommittee on Education, Arts and Humanities
Senator Robert T. Stafford, Chair

March 29, 1985
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STATEMENT OF GAIL MORRIS TO THE UNITED STATES SENATE SUBCOMMITTEE ON
EDUCATION, ARTS AND HUMANITIES

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Senate Subcommittee on Education,

Arts and Humanities, my name is Gail Morris and I appreciate this op-

portunity to share with you some of the impacts of the Administration's

proposed budget cuts in student financial aid for fiscal year 1986.

Let me preface my remarks by explaining that I speak from a broad

base of experience in regards to student financial aid. I am a former

financial aid officer at San Diego State University, and am currently

employed as a school counselor in the Bethel School District. My cur-

rent position has allowed me to speak with hundreds of parents and

students in regards to the effects of the Administration's past and

present student financial aid proposals.

Also, I currently serve as a member of the Government Relations Com-

mittee of the American School Counselors Association, a division of the

American Association for Counseling and Development, a nationwide organi-

zation comprised of more than 43,000 professional counselors, counselor

educators and related human service providers, and I am the former pres-

ident of the Connecticut School Counselors Association.

In my discussion with secondary school students, I find that they

are increasingly concerned with reductions in postsecondary student fin-

ancial aid, so concerned that they are seriously questioning how they

and their families will be able to afford a postsecondary education.

According to the Committee for Education Funding, 808,000 of our

Nation's students who come from middle income families would no longer

be eligible for Pell Grants during the 1986-87 academic year if President

Reagan's FY '86 budget proposal were adopted in its entirety; and, nearly

one million students would no longer qualify for Guaranteed Student Loans

because of the proposed $32,500 family income cap.
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STATEMENT OF GAIL MORRIS -2-

The Connecticut Department of Higher Education projects that

6,000 students would be affected under the Administration's FY '86

budget proposal, with 3,500 students actually being dropped. In

addition, 24,000 students attending postsecondary institutions in

Connecticut would no longer be eligible for Guaranteed Student Loans.

Ten thousand students could lose National Direct Student Loans, and

almost 3000 awards of college work-study, Supplemental Educational

Opportunity Grants, and State Student Incentive Grants would be lost

under the President's proposal.

Mr. Chairman, such reductions in financial aid will discourage

students from pursuing any type of postsecondary education. Under

the president's proposal, I fear that we will remove the equity of

choice for our students; that is, the opportunity to select a post-

secondary institution based on its qualities, and not its cost.

The proposed cuts would devastate low and middle income families

who have children enrolled in postsecondary institutions. For the

more than 481,000 elementary and secondary students in Connecticut

schools, these cuts in student financial aid will have long range

effects.

Connecticut postsecondary institutions have seen a rise in enroll-

ments, and in order that our students continue to pursue higher educa-

tion, I urge you to reject the cuts in the president's FY '86 student

financial aid buoget request.

Mr. Chairman and members of the Subcommittee, let us not shat-

ter the dreams of our young people. Their desire to learn, and their

wish to become productive citizens of this nation depend on your de-

cisions and those of your colleagues. While we all recognize the

economic effects of the federal deficit, I hope that you will remember

that an investment in education surely yields a high return.

Thank you.
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The Honorable
Lowell P. Weicxer, )r.

Ubited StatesSenate
303 Hart Senate Office Building
'Washington, D.C. 20510

SCHOOL OF PROFESSIONAL STUDIES
AND CONTINUING EDUCATION
Ralf IL Carriuolo, PhD Dean
Gate )louse

300 Orange Avenue
13 ot Has iii . Cunnivhull
04);lo,

203,)12.720)

Nhrch 29, 1935

RE: Field Hbdring of the Senate Subcannittee on Education, Arts and the
lirnanities, Ntirch 29, 1985. University of Hartford, Hbrtford. Connecticut

Dear Senator Veicker;

Although most of the arguments against the proposed budget changes for Higher
Education have been presented with an eye towards the traditional full-time
student in mind, there are several points to consider regarding the impact
on non-traditional students -- those students either majoring in the develop-
ing disciplines of cross-technological areas and/or those students attending
universities on other than a full-tine basis. 1 would like to respond to
these on two levels: first, as Dean of the School of Professional Studies
and Continuing Education, whose prinnry concern is for the education of
non-traditional students; second, as an admnistrator in higher education,
with d broader view of the educational levels of future American society.

Students in our Professional Studies programs of Occupational Safety and
Health, Fire Science, dud Aeronautical Technology are training for management
positions critical to ATerican industry. They are developing skills to
supervise, control, and coordinate the technicians in business whose perfor-
rmnce keeps Acerica in the forefront of industrialized nations. They come
to institutions like the University of New Riven because these programs
do not exist else here. They arc (ran families of loser- to 'noodle-income
and would be ineligible for traditional financial aid according to the pro-
posed guidelines. These students, therefore, would be unable to obtain
this education because State institutions do not offer programs in these
areas. Their options, therefore, would be either to enroll in the technical
progr.ns offered by their State's technical schools or to enter straight
nunagerial programs offered by the State universities. This will perpetuate
the gap between nanagment and technology that our prograns have attarpted
to address. A 3- to s-year Iedd titre is average for State institutions
to design, dcelop, and inaugurate new programs to supplant those sr would
phase out because of our enrollment drops.
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Title VIII is slated to be reduced and possibly disbanded. This program
funds Cooperative Education -- the only real prograniallowing a viable option
for students to help finance the cost of their private education. The Co -op
program has a proven track record for both students and employers. The
student gains direct work experience and the opportunity to apply classroom
knowledge immediately to employment situations. The employer has the advan-
tage of pre-hiring evaluation, an inexpensive labor pool, and the opportunity
to mold a future employee appropriately. To cut Title VIII would be it savings
of 14.4 million dollars. But the wages earned by Cooperative Education
students totalled 1.05 billion dollars in 1984, realizing tax revenue of
133.35 million dollars. To cut Title VIII, therefore, would be to lose
119 million dollars of tax revenue.

The School of Professional Studies has begun offering "Career Certificate
Programs" -- program designed for people to place students otherwise not
interested in full higher education enrollment into the job market with
specific skills within a 12 -month period. These program*, although leading
ultimately to a degree if desired, train students in specific skills (Cenputer
Programming, Office Systens Management, etc.) to enter the job market at
a higher level than what they otherwise might have attained. For many,
it prepares than for their first full -time job. As currently constituted,
federal financial aid packages are available to them. Under the new regula-
tions, they would not be eligible. We estimate that, fran our Institution
alone, the exclusion of these students fran this program would result in
a loss of 1.65 million dollars annually in additional taxable income to
the Federal Government.

The relegation of middle- and lower-income students to public education
will either overload the current State system unless extensive expansion
is immediately undertaken, or effectively deny these students any higher
education if there is no such expansion. it is also a direct Insult to
those institutions such as ours who have taken community service seriously
and developed special programs of study for such lover- and middle - incase
families -- program* that public institutions have been either unable or
unwilling to provide. We have proven through our 65 years of constant success
that we fulfill a substantial role in the higher education of our region,
and that we arc damned good at it. For the Federal Government to tell us,
via budgetary linguistics, that what we have accomplished is "nice" but
inappropriate for the future is patently absurd.

Oat the changes in federal funding effectively say to us, therefore, Is
that private institutions of higher education are to service the upper-
incare brackets only, providing an education that will serve the financially
elite and that group's educational desires. All others must be dependent
upon the State for their education. Aren't we talking about the extremes
of the current double standard experienced at the secondary school level
now? h this truly in the best interests of a mature democratic society?
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The People's Republic of China is experiencing a most difficult educational
period in this decade as a result of an age group reared during the cul-
tural revolution: youths mobilized to expound on the teachings of Who,
not to learn the basics of literacy, are now rmturing into a production
work force without the proper foundations necessary to deal with the contem-
porary technology the current government desires. Fran my vantage point
as an educator, I fear we are courting a similar disaster by forcing the
higher education of children of the working class family into the hands
of public education only. There are far too few state legislators concerned
with the overall level of American education. This is the role of the Federal
Government -- a role too important to abdicate even for the sake of fiscal
responsibility.

No one disagrees with the need for fiscal responsibility and containment
of the national debt. But the balance between federal responsibility for
budget and federal resonsibility for educational opportunity and quality
oust be struck mach more evenly than is being proposed under the new budget
requests.

If I may be of any further service to you or the Committee, please feel
free to contact me. Thank you for your consideration of these points.

Sincerely,

Ralf E. Carritiolo

REG/scl
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March 22, 1985

Honorable Lowell Weicker, Jr.
United States Senator
Committee on Labor and Human Resources
Washington, O. C. 20510

Dear Senator Weickeri

APR oi
CPS

Thank you for your letter and enclosures of March 12 informing us
of your hearing that will be held at the University of Hartford on
March 29. We will be represented there, but I did want to express
my feelings to yot, on student aid and other items before, hand. In

fact, I want to go back to something you said in Enfield during
Your last Campaign. You were talking about higher education and
our involvement with students from other countries, especially
Third World countries, on American college Campuses. Your com-
parison was between what our country's colleges are doing with
what Cube's colleges, as well as other communist countries" col-
leges are doing with foreign students. I certainly agree with you
that more needs to be done. Our college has been doing this as
best we can even though we have been severely criticized by people
here in Connecticut.

On financial aid, I take great issue with the statements made that
students are buying Cars, stereos, etc., with federal dollars.
Sometimes cars are absolutely essential because it is the only way
a student can get to a campus due to the lack of public trans-
portation. However, the car is only a means to an end and I have
rarely seen the purchase of an automobile result from financial
aid. This is especially true in Connecticut where not only the
Purchase of the car is involved, but then the mandatory insurance,
the cost of fuel, etc. That is why most of our students come from
an immediate area and in fact will not drive more than ten or
fifteen miles for their college education.

A second factor with out students is that they are adults, not
people 'List out of high school. Furthe., they are adults with
families, catizenshie, and work responsibilities. Thus, the
largest proportion of our students are adult women, many of whom
are single heads of households, and they attend college on a part-
time basis. What some of these women are trying to do is to stay
off of other federal and state supported programs by learning new
things. including lob skills. for their entry, re-entry, or access
to better lab opportunities. In fact, in discussing financial aid
oroposals wit', faculty and staff, a number Of women's names, were
mentiOned who were too proud to even apply for financial aid,
Rather, they gave up other items and these items are certainly not
stereos, automobiles, etc., but things that could be identified as
essential items for their livelihood,
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I certainly agree with you about funding the education of other
countries' citizens as this carries far more significance than what
happens in the classroom. But at the same time I do not wish to find us
in an either/or situation where we forget our own human resource. Too
many authors are indicating that the only advantage the United States
haw today is in its brain power and it is my belief that we are damaging
this resource with shortsightedness that will only hasten the deteriora-
tion of our country's position in the world.

As part of this total funding picture for higher education though, I

must mention vocational education funds since so many of our students
have benefited over the years from these dollars. I have been told by
friends in Washington that you are considering the addition of one
hundred million dollars to the Basic State Grant Program under the
Vocational Education Act. For many of the reasons stated above, I

hardily endorse such action and encourage you to make this move of
adding one hundred million dollars as a supplemental for vocational
education under the Basic State Grant Program. Under the current pro-
posal, we do not feel it would even be worth our while, due to shortages
of staff, to pursue what is curren^lv described as the Vocational Educa-
tion Act and its manner of distribution. Thus, the adults in North
Central Connecticut will be the ones to suffer from current thinking.
While most of our equipment does come from state bonded indebtedness, it
is the vocational education funds that have allowed us to keep these
technical provams up to date. Without the vocational education funds,
we will be forced tv prepare students in f technology with equip-
ment that we know is obsolete. This bothers me greatly as it would only
deteriorate further the current image of higher education held by many
employers.

And, while I am talking about employment, I would request that Title
IIIC and E be considered for a small funding package.

I call these two
sections the recycling of the adult workforce and have enclosed a paper
I wrote out of total frustration when our unemployment rate in
Connecticut was very high. This article has been published in part and
in whole in a number of places. but I guess no one has ever taken the
recycling of the adult as a serious matter; we do talk about second and
third, perhaps even fourth , but we have no systematic way of
helping people who are becoming obsolete or unemployed before that
matter hits the individual. If we could lust make a small beginning on
Title II1C and E, it would prove most beneficial in the future to imple-
ment a systematic way of keeping the adult workforce prepared with what
employers need in terms of knowledge and skills.

I appreciate this opportunity of expressing my experience and beliefs to
you and your coming home to Connecticut to hear the plight of colleges
and their financial aid program; on behalf of the students and staff of
Asnuntuck, as well as I am sure a number of other colleges in
Connecticut, I express our thanks to you.

Sincerely,

Daniel R. cLaughli
President

DR11/mP

Enclosures

Cc: Congressman Nancy Johnson
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SOUTHERN CONNECTICUT STATE UNIVERSITY
501 Crescent Street New Haven, Connecticut 06515 (203) 397.4234

March 5, 1985

President Ronald Reagan
The White House
Washington, D.C.

Dear President Reagan,

Your adotinistation's decision to cut back drastically on federally
guaranteed student loans and grants is counterproductive to America's
long-terve development and should be abandoned. It threatens to disrupt the
lives of millions of students and their ratifies, who are already struggling
to make educational ends meet. It also promises to deny a college education
to intelligent and serious students, who have done nothing wrong except be
born into the American iddleclass.

I am president of a state university that educates thousands of
01 ddleclass students each year. I know from personal experience that many
of our students will be forced to drop out of our university, or severely
cut back on their schooling, should your proposals be adopted. More than 40
percent 01 our 7,000 full-time students currently rely on government loans
and grants, including Guaranteed Student Loans, Pell Grants, Supplemental
Educational Opportunity Grants, and the College WorkStudy program. Under
your proposals, these students will have virtually no alternative but to
drop out of school, probably forever. It is unclear to me how you think
their leaving college will benefit their or America's future.

The drop in the number of high school students has already affected
college enrollments. To reduce the college population even further by
pricing more students out of the educational market would be a severe Jolt
to many colleges and univa,'sities. You would see a precipitous drop in the
very quality of education that your administration claims to foster.

Your educational task forces call for better teaching in high schools
and growler schools. However, your latest budget proposals would cut the
ground out from under the col:ages and universities that educate those
teachers.

3J8A.11AVA r90`..) 1'83,9
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This is not an issue of public versus private higher education. It
is more fundamental than that. It is an issue of the quality of lives of
our young people and their families and the quality of life of our nation
during the next generation or two.

One of the strengths that distinguishes the United States from the
rest of the world is the level of education of our people. No other country
in history has educated so many of its citizens at such a high level. As a
result of that broad-based education, this country has produced a culture of
great vitality and productiviy.

Your proposals to reduce student aid for higher education threatens
the strength of our culture by lowering the level of academic achievement
that supports the expectations and lone -range planning of this and
succeeding generations of students. For young people .to become the adults
who will solve the many problems facing us today and tomorrow, they will
need more education, not less.

To deny so many of our young people access to colleges and
universities, which is what your cutbacks in financial aid will do, you
Jeopardize not only their lives but the lives of all of us, who depend on
tht clear thinking of educated minds.

I know, Mr. President, that the federal budget deficit is dangerously
large and must be drastically reduced. To reduce it at the expense of
education, however, is to turn the nation's priorities upside down.

We, who administer colleges and universities, are doing our best to
keep costs as low as we can. We are also trying, through private loans and
grants, to make education as accessible as possible to many academically

qualified students, who currently lack sufficient funds. But it is
impossible for us to pick up the financial slack that will occur if your
proposals to cut back financial aid are implemented.

I call upon you and you; advisers to revise your thinking on this
vital matter and reinstate the loan programs that are critical to the health
of higher education in this country.

14.3A/ab

Sincerely,

4

Michael J. Aden
President

1;8 I !Mi.' V50 ro ,
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March 21, 1985

Senator Lowell Weicker, Jr.
United States Senate
Committee on Labor and Human Resources
Washington, DC 20510

Dear Lowell,

Thank you for letting me know about the Subcommittee hearing in
Hartford on President Reagan's proposed cute in federal aid for higher

education. Trinity will be represented at the hearing by Hrs. Anne
Zartarian, Director of Financial Aid, and two of our undergraduates, David
Fontaine and Eloise Nurse. I should like to appear personally but must be
away from the College on a development trip. Hr.. Zartarian and the
students will make a good case, and I know that you, in turn, will represent
us well, and I thank you very such for that.

My own views on the matter can be summated this way. A great mistake
was made when we reduced taxes an much as we did a few years back. The

economic theories on which the cuts were based were specious, and the
consequences have been very serious: huge budget deficits; higher interest
rates; an overpriced dollar; a frightening imbalance in foreign trade; and
dreadful pressures on the American farmer, American capital goods producers,

and Third World debtor countries.

Certainly pose effort can be made to correct this situation by reducing
Federal expenditures, but It le unrealistic to expect that the budget can be
balanced in this way, particularly if defense expenditures are not cut
substantially.

The proposed reductions in student old are simply far too great. They

will reduce opportunities for lower income students and drive many of them
away from the independent institutieue and into the public systems. This

will greatly weaken the private colleges and universities (some of which are
In perilous condition already) and place a such larger financial burden on
the states, which will have to subsidise a larger number of students in the

state colleges and universities.

It's another bad way to try to head off a much-nee: .d tax increase.

Cordially,

James F. English, Jr.
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Senator WEICKER. Thank you very much.
I think the issue has been well definei both in terms of facts and

in terms of ideals. I will end the hearing as follows: Yesterday on
Wall Street the President said we are going to cut the bull loose. I
would suggest that in so far as the President's education recom-
mendations are concerned he has already done that.

Now it is up to the Congress to go ahead and act. And it is up to
all to speak out. I think all we have to do is look around us to see
what has been created and the real question for this generation is
whether we are going to do our own creating or whether we are
just going to run the well dry. That is the real issue.

And the comment was made that we do not want any "me" gen-
erations. And I think it is well put. Again, those that are affluent
today are so because of the sacrifices of others, not because of some
God given ability of their own. In this Nation we have always
helped our neighbors, and certainly we have done that in the State.

Education is the future of this Nation, and you have stated it as
eloquently as I have ever heard it, every person that has appeared
before the committee.

Thank you and the committee will stand in adjournment.
[Whereupon, at 11:55 a.m., the committee was adjourned.]
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